

Required fields are shown with yellow backgrounds and asterisks.

Page 1 of * <input style="width: 40px;" type="text" value="55"/>	SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 Form 19b-4	File No.* SR - <input style="width: 40px;" type="text" value="2012"/> - * <input style="width: 40px;" type="text" value="17"/>	Amendment No. (req. for Amendments *) <input style="width: 40px;" type="text"/>					
Proposed Rule Change by ICE Clear Credit LLC. Pursuant to Rule 19b-4 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934								
Initial * <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	Amendment * <input type="checkbox"/>	Withdrawal <input type="checkbox"/>	Section 19(b)(2) * <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	Section 19(b)(3)(A) * <input type="checkbox"/>	Section 19(b)(3)(B) * <input type="checkbox"/>			
			Rule					
Pilot <input type="checkbox"/>	Extension of Time Period for Commission Action * <input type="checkbox"/>	Date Expires * <input style="width: 80px;" type="text"/>	19b-4(f)(1) <input type="checkbox"/>	19b-4(f)(2) <input type="checkbox"/>	19b-4(f)(3) <input type="checkbox"/>	19b-4(f)(4) <input type="checkbox"/>	19b-4(f)(5) <input type="checkbox"/>	19b-4(f)(6) <input type="checkbox"/>
Exhibit 2 Sent As Paper Document <input type="checkbox"/>		Exhibit 3 Sent As Paper Document <input type="checkbox"/>						
Description								
Provide a brief description of the proposed rule change (limit 250 characters, required when Initial is checked *).								
The principal purpose of the proposed change is to amend the ICC Clearing Rules to implement the enhanced margin segregation model for cleared swaps that the CFTC adopted in Part 22 of the CFTC regulations (generally referred to as "legal segregation with operational commingling" or "LSOC").								
Contact Information								
Provide the name, telephone number and e-mail address of the person on the staff of the self-regulatory organization prepared to respond to questions and comments on the proposed rule change.								
First Name * <input style="width: 200px;" type="text" value="Kevin"/>			Last Name * <input style="width: 200px;" type="text" value="McClear"/>					
Title * <input style="width: 500px;" type="text" value="General Counsel"/>								
E-mail * <input style="width: 500px;" type="text" value="kevin.mcclear@theice.com"/>								
Telephone * <input style="width: 100px;" type="text" value="(312) 836-6833"/>			Fax <input style="width: 100px;" type="text"/>					
Signature								
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,								
has duly caused this filing to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized officer.								
Date <input style="width: 80px;" type="text" value="09/21/2012"/>								
By <input style="width: 200px;" type="text" value="Michelle Weiler"/>			<input style="width: 300px;" type="text" value="Assistant General Counsel"/>					
(Name *)			(Title *)					
NOTE: Clicking the button at right will digitally sign and lock this form. A digital signature is as legally binding as a physical signature, and once signed, this form cannot be changed.			<input style="width: 150px; height: 20px;" type="button" value="Michelle Weiler,"/>					

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

For complete Form 19b-4 instructions please refer to the EFFF website.

Form 19b-4 Information (required)

Add Remove View

The self-regulatory organization must provide all required information, presented in a clear and comprehensible manner, to enable the public to provide meaningful comment on the proposal and for the Commission to determine whether the proposal is consistent with the Act and applicable rules and regulations under the Act.

Exhibit 1 - Notice of Proposed Rule Change (required)

Add Remove View

The Notice section of this Form 19b-4 must comply with the guidelines for publication in the Federal Register as well as any requirements for electronic filing as published by the Commission (if applicable). The Office of the Federal Register (OFR) offers guidance on Federal Register publication requirements in the Federal Register Document Drafting Handbook, October 1998 Revision. For example, all references to the federal securities laws must include the corresponding cite to the United States Code in a footnote. All references to SEC rules must include the corresponding cite to the Code of Federal Regulations in a footnote. All references to Securities Exchange Act Releases must include the release number, release date, Federal Register cite, Federal Register date, and corresponding file number (e.g., SR-[SRO]-xx-xx). A material failure to comply with these guidelines will result in the proposed rule change being deemed not properly filed. See also Rule 0-3 under the Act (17 CFR 240.0-3)

Exhibit 2 - Notices, Written Comments, Transcripts, Other Communications

Add Remove View

Exhibit Sent As Paper Document

Copies of notices, written comments, transcripts, other communications. If such documents cannot be filed electronically in accordance with Instruction F, they shall be filed in accordance with Instruction G.

Exhibit 3 - Form, Report, or Questionnaire

Add Remove View

Exhibit Sent As Paper Document

Copies of any form, report, or questionnaire that the self-regulatory organization proposes to use to help implement or operate the proposed rule change, or that is referred to by the proposed rule change.

Exhibit 4 - Marked Copies

Add Remove View

The full text shall be marked, in any convenient manner, to indicate additions to and deletions from the immediately preceding filing. The purpose of Exhibit 4 is to permit the staff to identify immediately the changes made from the text of the rule with which it has been working.

Exhibit 5 - Proposed Rule Text

Add Remove View

The self-regulatory organization may choose to attach as Exhibit 5 proposed changes to rule text in place of providing it in Item I and which may otherwise be more easily readable if provided separately from Form 19b-4. Exhibit 5 shall be considered part of the proposed rule change.

Partial Amendment

Add Remove View

If the self-regulatory organization is amending only part of the text of a lengthy proposed rule change, it may, with the Commission's permission, file only those portions of the text of the proposed rule change in which changes are being made if the filing (i.e. partial amendment) is clearly understandable on its face. Such partial amendment shall be clearly identified and marked to show deletions and additions.

Form 19b-4 Information

1. Text of the Proposed Rule Change

(a) The text of the proposed change has been annexed as Exhibit 5 and consists of certain rule changes that have been proposed by ICE Clear Credit LLC (“ICC”). The principal purpose of the proposed change is to amend the ICC Clearing Rules (“ICC Rules”) to implement the enhanced margin segregation model for cleared swaps that the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) adopted in Part 22 of the CFTC regulations (generally referred to as “legal segregation with operational commingling” or “LSOC”). CFTC rules require ICC (like other derivatives clearing organizations) to implement LSOC by November 8, 2012.

(b) Not applicable.

(c) Not applicable.

2. Procedures of the Self-Regulatory Organization

(a) The proposed rule changes have been approved by the ICC Board of Managers.

(b) Please refer questions and comments on the proposed rule change to Kevin R.

McClellan, General Counsel of ICC, at (312) 836-6833.

3. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement of the Purpose of, and Statutory Basis for, the Proposed Rule Change

(a) Purpose

ICC submits proposed amendments to its Rules to implement the CFTC’s Part 22 regulations (which adopt the LSOC model) by the CFTC’s implementation deadline of November 8, 2012. As result of the LSOC requirements, ICC principally proposes to (i) introduce new procedures for allocating initial margin to the positions carried for each customer on a customer-by-customer basis, (ii) introduce new procedures for calling for, holding and

returning customer margin in light of the requirement to allocate initial margin on a customer-by-customer basis, and (iii) change the default “waterfall” to limit ICC’s ability to use customer margin in the event that a clearing member defaults, consistent with the requirements of LSOC. The LSOC requirements are intended to mitigate the risk that one customer of a clearing member would suffer a loss because of a default by another clearing member. ICC will also be removing existing provisions of the Rules that addressed the holding of excess margin and will not be necessary in ICC’s initial implementation of LSOC.

ICC proposes to amend Parts 4, 8, 20 and 20A of the ICC Rules, as well as related definitions, to incorporate Part 22 of the CFTC Regulations. The other proposed changes in the ICC Rules reflect conforming changes and drafting clarifications, and do not affect the substance of the ICC Rules or forms of cleared products. The text of the proposed rule and procedural amendments are attached, with additions underlined and deletions in strikethrough text. All capitalized terms not defined herein are defined in the ICC Rules.

(b) Statutory Basis

The proposed rule amendments are intended to update the particular characteristics of the Rules applicable to the segregation of customer margin. Specifically, the proposed rule changes affect Parts 4, 8, 20 and 20A of the ICC Rules, and related definitions, by providing, in summary, that initial margin allocated to a particular customer’s positions may not be used to cover losses arising from another customer’s positions. Each of these changes is described in detail as follows.

In Part 1 of the ICC Rules, the definitions of “custodial asset policies,” “custodial client omnibus margin account,” “eligible custodial assets,” “excess margin,” “net client omnibus margin account,” “net margin requirement,” and “Participant excess margin” have been deleted

to reflect the LSOC model and particularly the elimination of provisions relating to holding excess margin at ICC. New definitions for “client omnibus margin account” and “non-Participant party portfolio” have been added to accommodate the LSOC model, including the customer-by-customer tracking of initial margin and positions.

Existing Rule 402(a) has been revised so that it only applies to house margin. ICC has adopted a new Rule 402(b) that governs for client-related margin, which is the margin posted by a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions. To comply with LSOC as it relates to “initial margin,” under new Rule 402(b)(i), ICC will calculate the initial margin requirement separately for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio and compare it to the value of initial margin provided by the Participant and allocated by ICC under CFTC Rules to that portfolio. In each margin cycle, ICC will call for additional initial margin for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio for which there is a shortfall. ICC will separately make available for return to the Participant any excess initial margin held with respect to a Non-Participant Party Portfolio.

For “mark-to-market margin” under new Rule 402(b)(ii), ICC will continue to calculate a net amount for all Client-Related Positions in all Non-Participant Party Portfolios and compare it to the value of the mark-to-market margin held by ICC or the value of the mark-to-market margin held or deemed held by the Participant. For each margin cycle, ICC will make a net call or payment of mark-to-market margin, as appropriate.

Under the proposed revised Rule 402(h), ICC has incorporated the new CFTC Rule 22.15, which limits ICC’s use of the Initial Margin posted in respect of Client-Related Positions. Revisions to Rule 406 eliminate various provisions that are now covered by CFTC regulations and are no longer necessary with the implementation of the LSOC framework. Further, under

the proposed new Rule 406(l), ICC states that it will not accept the deposit of Margin from a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions in excess of the amount required by ICC.

ICC proposes to revise Rule 20-605(c)(i)(A) in order to modify the default “waterfall” for application of resources in the Closing-out Process for Client-Related Positions upon a Participant default to reflect new CFTC Rule 22.15. The principal change to the rule is in subclause (C), which provides that ICC is only entitled to use Initial Margin allocated to a particular Non-Participant Party Portfolio to cover losses from that portfolio. Initial Margin for Client-Related Positions could not otherwise be applied by ICC as part of the default waterfall. Rule 20-605(c)(i)(A) and (B) also contain various non-substantive drafting improvements and clarifications as compared to the existing Rule. Revisions to Rule 20-605(d) address ICC’s ability to allocate margin to a particular Non-Participant Party Portfolio for purposes of the default waterfall. ICC has also made conforming changes to Chapter 8 of the Rules, which addresses the use of the guaranty fund in the default waterfall.

Finally, the proposed changes to Part 20A of the ICC Rules, which address transfer of positions, are also intended to conform to the changes in the default waterfall.

4. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement on Burden on Competition

ICC does not believe the proposed rule changes would have any impact, or impose any burden, on competition.

5. Self-Regulatory Organization’s statement on Comments on the Proposed Rule Change Received from Members, Participants, or Others

Written comments relating to the rule changes have not been solicited or received. ICC will notify the Commission of any written comments received by ICC.

6. Extension of Time Period for Commission Action

ICC does not consent to the extension of the time period listed in Section 19(b)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for Commission action.

7. Basis for Summary Effectiveness Pursuant to Section 19(b)(3) or for Accelerated Effectiveness Pursuant to Section 19(b)(2) or Section 19(b)(7)(D)

(a) Not applicable.

(b) Not applicable.

(c) Not applicable.

(d) ICC respectfully requests that the Commission grant accelerated effectiveness of the proposed rule change under Section 19(b)(2). ICC believes that accelerated effectiveness is warranted because, as noted above, the rule change is required in order to be in compliance with Part 22 of the CFTC Regulations on the November 8, 2012 effective date of those regulations. In ICC's view, the proposed changes do not raise any issues that would require a lengthier review process under Rule 19(b), and ICC does not believe the market would benefit from delaying implementation of the proposed rule changes.

8. Proposed Rule Change Based on Rules of Another Self-Regulatory Organization or the Commission

The proposed rule changes are not based on the rules of another self-regulatory organization or the Commission.

9. Exhibits

Exhibit 1 – Notice of proposed rule change for publication in the Federal Register

Exhibit 5 – Text of proposed Rule changes

Exhibit 1

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
(Release No. 34- ; File No. SR-ICC-2012-17)

September 21, 2012

Self-Regulatory Organizations; ICE Clear Credit LLC; Notice of Filing of Proposed Rule Change to Revise Rules Related to Legal Segregation with Operational Commingling

Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Act”),¹ and Rule 19b-4 thereunder,² notice is hereby given that on September 21, 2012, ICE Clear Credit LLC (“ICC”) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”) the proposed rule changes described in Items I, II and III below, which Items have been primarily prepared by ICC. The Commission is publishing this notice to solicit comments on the proposed rule change from interested persons.

I. Self-regulatory Organization’s Statement of the Terms of Substance of the Proposed Rule Change

ICC submits proposed amendments to its Rules to implement the enhanced margin segregation model for cleared swaps that the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) adopted in Part 22 of the CFTC regulations (generally referred to as “legal segregation with operational commingling” or “LSOC”). CFTC rules require ICC (like other derivatives clearing organizations) to implement LSOC by November 8, 2012. As result of the LSOC requirements, ICC principally proposes to (i) introduce new procedures for allocating initial margin to the positions carried for each customer on a customer-by-customer basis, (ii) introduce new procedures for calling for, holding and returning customer margin in light of the requirement to allocate initial margin on a

¹ 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1).

² 17 CFR 240.19b-4.

customer-by-customer basis, and (iii) change the default “waterfall” to limit ICC’s ability to use customer margin in the event that a clearing member defaults, consistent with the requirements of LSOC. The LSOC requirements are intended to mitigate the risk that one customer of a clearing member would suffer a loss because of a default by another clearing member. ICC will also be removing existing provisions of the Rules that addressed the holding of excess margin and will not be necessary in ICC’s initial implementation of LSOC.

ICC proposes to amend Parts 4, 8, 20 and 20A of the ICC Rules, as well as related definitions, to incorporate Part 22 of the CFTC Regulations. The other proposed changes in the ICC Rules reflect conforming changes and drafting clarifications, and do not affect the substance of the ICC Rules or forms of cleared products. The text of the proposed rule and procedural amendments are attached, with additions underlined and deletions in strikethrough text. All capitalized terms not defined herein are defined in the ICC Rules.

II. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement of the Purpose of, and Statutory Basis for, the Proposed Rule Change

In its filing with the Commission, ICC included statements concerning the purpose of and basis for the proposed rule changes and discussed any comments it received on the proposed rule changes. The text of these statements may be examined at the places specified in Item IV below. ICC has prepared summaries, set forth in sections (A), (B), and (C) below, of the most significant aspects of these statements.

(A) Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement of the Purpose of, and Statutory Basis for, the Proposed Rule Change

As noted above, the principal purpose of the proposed rule amendments is intended to update the particular characteristics of the Rules applicable to the segregation

of customer margin. Specifically, the proposed rule changes affect Parts 4, 8, 20 and 20A of the ICC Rules, and related definitions, by providing, in summary, that initial margin allocated to a particular customer's positions may not be used to cover losses arising from another customer's positions. Each of these changes is described in detail as follows.

In Part 1 of the ICC Rules, the definitions of "custodial asset policies," "custodial client omnibus margin account," "eligible custodial assets," "excess margin," "net client omnibus margin account," "net margin requirement," and "Participant excess margin" have been deleted to reflect the LSOC model and particularly the elimination of provisions relating to holding excess margin at ICC. New definitions for "client omnibus margin account" and "non-Participant party portfolio" have been added to accommodate the LSOC model, including the customer-by-customer tracking of initial margin and positions.

Existing Rule 402(a) has been revised so that it only applies to house margin. ICC has adopted a new Rule 402(b) that governs for client-related margin, which is the margin posted by a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions. To comply with LSOC as it relates to "initial margin," under new Rule 402(b)(i), ICC will calculate the initial margin requirement separately for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio and compare it to the value of initial margin provided by the Participant and allocated by ICC under CFTC Rules to that portfolio. In each margin cycle, ICC will call for additional initial margin for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio for which there is a shortfall. ICC will separately make available for return to the Participant any excess initial margin held with respect to a Non-Participant Party Portfolio.

For “mark-to-market margin” under new Rule 402(b)(ii), ICC will continue to calculate a net amount for all Client-Related Positions in all Non-Participant Party Portfolios and compare it to the value of the mark-to-market margin held by ICC or the value of the mark-to-market margin held or deemed held by the Participant. For each margin cycle, ICC will make a net call or payment of mark-to-market margin, as appropriate.

Under the proposed revised Rule 402(h), ICC has incorporated the new CFTC Rule 22.15, which limits ICC’s use of the Initial Margin posted in respect of Client-Related Positions. Revisions to Rule 406 eliminate various provisions that are now covered by CFTC regulations and are no longer necessary with the implementation of the LSOC framework. Further, under the proposed new Rule 406(l), ICC states that it will not accept the deposit of Margin from a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions in excess of the amount required by ICC.

ICC proposes to revise Rule 20-605(c)(i)(A) in order to modify the default “waterfall” for application of resources in the Closing-out Process for Client-Related Positions upon a Participant default to reflect new CFTC Rule 22.15. The principal change to the rule is in subclause (C), which provides that ICC is only entitled to use Initial Margin allocated to a particular Non-Participant Party Portfolio to cover losses from that portfolio. Initial Margin for Client-Related Positions could not otherwise be applied by ICC as part of the default waterfall. Rule 20-605(c)(i)(A) and (B) also contain various non-substantive drafting improvements and clarifications as compared to the existing Rule. Revisions to Rule 20-605(d) address ICC’s ability to allocate margin to a particular Non-Participant Party Portfolio for purposes of the default waterfall. ICC has

also made conforming changes to Chapter 8 of the Rules, which addresses the use of the guaranty fund in the default waterfall.

Finally, the proposed changes to Part 20A of the ICC Rules, which address transfer of positions, are also intended to conform to the changes in the default waterfall.

(B) Self-Regulatory Organization's Statement on Burden on Competition

ICC does not believe the proposed rule change would have any impact, or impose any burden, on competition.

(C) Self-Regulatory Organization's Statement on Comments on the Proposed Rule Change

Received from Members, Participants or Others

Written comments relating to the proposed rule change have been solicited by ICC pursuant to public consultation processes in the circulars referred to above. No comments have been received.

III. Date of Effectiveness of the Proposed Rule Change and Timing for Commission Action

Within 45 days of the date of publication of this notice in the Federal Register or within such longer period (i) as the Commission may designate up to 90 days of such date if it finds such longer period to be appropriate and publishes its reasons for so finding or (ii) as to which the self-regulatory organization consents, the Commission will:

(A) by order approve such proposed rule change, or

(B) institute proceedings to determine whether the proposed rule change should be disapproved.

IV. Solicitation of Comments

Interested persons are invited to submit written data, views, and arguments concerning the foregoing, including whether the proposed rule change is consistent with the Act. Comments may be submitted by any of the following methods:

Electronic Comments:

- Use the Commission's Internet comment form (<http://www.sec.gov/rules/sro.shtml>) or
- Send an e-mail to rule-comments@sec.gov. Please include File Number SR-ICC-2012-17 on the subject line.

Paper Comments:

- Send paper comments in triplicate to Elizabeth M. Murphy, Secretary, Securities and Exchange Commission, 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549-1090.

All submissions should refer to File Number SR-ICC-2012-17. This file number should be included on the subject line if e-mail is used. To help the Commission process and review your comments more efficiently, please use only one method. The Commission will post all comments on the Commission's Internet website (<http://www.sec.gov/rules/sro.shtml>). Copies of the submission, all subsequent amendments, all written statements with respect to the proposed rule change that are filed with the Commission, and all written communications relating to the proposed rule change between the Commission and any person, other than those that may be withheld from the public in accordance with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be available for website viewing and printing in the Commission's Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, on official business days between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 pm. Copies of such filings will also be available for inspection and

copying at the principal office of ICC and on ICC's website at

https://www.theice.com/publicdocs/regulatory_filings/ICEClearCredit_092112.pdf.

All comments received will be posted without change; the Commission does not edit personal identifying information from submissions. You should submit only information that you wish to make available publicly. All submissions should refer to File Number SR-ICC-2012-17 and should be submitted on or before [insert date 21 days from publication in the Federal Register].

For the Commission, by the Division of Trading and Markets, pursuant to delegated authority.³

Elizabeth M. Murphy
Secretary

³ 17 CFR 200.30-3(a)(12).



Clearing Rules

Table of Contents

PREAMBLE	2
1. INTERPRETATION	3
2. MEMBERSHIP	14
3. CLEARING OF CONTRACTS	26
4. MARGIN	37
5. RISK COMMITTEE	53
6. MISCELLANEOUS	66
7. DISCIPLINARY RULES	79
8. GENERAL GUARANTY FUND	89
9. ARBITRATION RULES	102
10-19. [RESERVED]	112
20. CREDIT DEFAULT SWAPS	113
20A. CDS PORTABILITY RULES	128
21. REGIONAL CDS COMMITTEES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES	132
22. CDS PHYSICAL SETTLEMENT	150
23-25. [RESERVED]	155
26. CLEARED CDS PRODUCTS	156
Schedule 401: Eligible Collateral & Thresholds	188
Schedule 502: List of Pre-Approved Products	189
Schedule 503: Form of Risk Committee Confidentiality Agreement	195
Schedule 511: Form of Risk Management Subcommittee Confidentiality Agreement	200
Schedule 702: Schedule of Assessments for Missed Price Submissions	203

The U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission.

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer of ICE Clear Credit.

Client Omnibus Margin Account

Any account or accounts maintained by or on behalf of ICE Clear Credit with respect to a Participant for the purposes of holding on an omnibus basis Margin posted by a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions (including margin of Non-Participant Parties posted to that Participant in respect of such margin requirement or property of a Participant posted in lieu thereof in accordance with these Rules).

Client-Related Initial Margin

Initial Margin (other than Physical Settlement Margin) with respect to Client-Related Positions.

Client-Related Position

An Open Position identified as such at the time the related Trade is submitted by an FCM Participant (in the case of a swap) or a Broker-Dealer Participant (in the case of a security-based swap) to ICE Clear Credit in accordance with Rules 301 and 302, where such related Trade, at the time established, is entered into by the Participant for a Non-Participant Party. ICE Clear Credit will rely on a Participant's designation of an Open Position as a Client-Related Position for purposes of these Rules. To the extent permitted by law, a Client-Related Position will include such an Open Position entered into by an FCM Participant or a Broker-Dealer Participant for another Person (which Person may, but need not, be an Affiliate of that Participant or of another Participant) that is itself acting for one or more Non-Participant Parties with respect to such Open Position (such Person in such case, a "**Client-Carrying Broker**").

Closing-out Process

In connection with the Default of a Participant, the process of termination of Open Positions, determination of amounts owing with respect thereto, netting of such amounts, liquidation and application of any Margin and/or Collateral and application of Default Portability Rules pursuant to Rule 20A-02, if applicable, in each case as contemplated by these Rules.

Collateral

At any time, such funds or other property Transferred by a Participant to ICE Clear Credit for the General Guaranty Fund pursuant to title transfer or pledge (and not released by ICE Clear Credit), in accordance with these Rules and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures.

Conforming Trade

The meaning specified in Rule 309.

Contracts

An agreement, contract, or transaction that is specifically identified in these Rules as a Contract.

Control

With respect to the relationship between or among two or more Persons, the possession, directly or indirectly or as trustee, personal representative or executor, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the affairs or management of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, as trustee, personal representative or executor, by contract, credit arrangement or otherwise.

~~Custodial Asset Policies~~

~~Policies or procedures adopted from time to time by ICE Clear Credit with respect to the investment of assets in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account and the assets permitted to be transferred to the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account.~~

~~Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account~~

~~Any account or accounts maintained by or on behalf of ICE Clear Credit with respect to a Participant for the purposes of holding on an omnibus basis margin of Non-Participant Parties posted to that Participant in respect of their respective Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin (as defined in Rule 406, as applicable) and Participant Excess Margin requirements, as applicable, or property of a Participant posted in lieu thereof in accordance with these Rules. For the avoidance of doubt, ICE Clear Credit may establish a separate account or subaccount with respect to a portion of the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account corresponding to the Net Client Omnibus Margin Amount.~~

DCO/SCA Conversion Date

July 16, 2011 or such later date as is announced as such by ICE Clear Credit consistent with applicable legal requirements.

Default

Any event that would constitute a Default under Rule 20-605 or the corresponding Rule in any Market or Contract-specific Chapter of these Rules.

~~Eligible Custodial Assets~~

~~Instruments permitted to be transferred to the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account under the Custodial Asset Policies from time to time.~~

Eligible Margin

The meaning specified in Rule 401(ed).

Eligible Officer

Any officer of ICE Clear Credit designated by the Board from time to time for purposes of the applicable determination, decision or other action contemplated by these Rules.

Emergency

The meaning specified in Rule 601.

~~Excess Margin~~

~~With respect to a Non-Participant Party of a Participant, (i) the amount of initial margin held in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account in respect of the Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin for Client-Related Positions of that Participant with respect to that Non-Participant Party, as reduced by the applicable Non-Participant Pro Rata Share of the Net Client Omnibus Margin Amount, plus (ii) the amount of any initial margin held in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account in excess of the current Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin for such Non-Participant Party that has not been withdrawn, plus (iii) (without duplication) the amount of such Participant Excess Margin, if any, collected from such Non-Participant Party as the Participant may Transfer from time to time to the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account to be held as Excess Margin.~~

Excess Net Capital

For a Participant that is an FCM or a Broker-Dealer, its “excess net capital” as reported on its Form 1-FR-FCM or FOCUS Report or as otherwise reported to the CFTC under CFTC Rule 1.12. For a Participant that is not an FCM or a Broker-Dealer, the amount, if any, by which its Adjusted Net Capital exceeds the capital requirement that would be applicable to it if it were an FCM, as determined pursuant to a methodology acceptable to ICE Clear Credit.

ICE Clear Credit

ICE Clear Credit LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (formerly ICE Trust U.S. LLC).

ICE Clear Credit Procedures

The policies, procedures and other provisions established by ICE Clear Credit relating to clearing of Contracts, as amended from time to time.

Initial Payment

The meaning specified in Rule 301(b).

Margin

Initial Margin (including Portfolio Risk Margin, Physical Settlement Margin and Super and Special Margin) and Mark-to-Market Margin (each as defined in Rule 403 or 404) Transferred or Transferable by or to a Participant to or by ICE Clear Credit.

Margin Accounts

Each Participant's House Margin Account and ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account.

Margin Category

The meaning specified in Rule 401(a).

Margin Requirement

The meaning specified in Rule 401(a).

~~**Net Margin Requirement**~~

~~The meaning specified in Rule 401(a).~~

Markets

A market that is party to an agreement with ICE Clear Credit for the provision of clearing services and that is specifically identified in these Rules as a Market.

Net Client Omnibus Margin Amount

~~As of any relevant time for a Participant, the aggregate amount of Client-Related Initial Margin with respect to the Client-Related Positions of that Participant (determined on a net basis across all such Client-Related Positions).~~

Net Margin Requirement

~~The meaning specified in Rule 401(a).~~

Non-Participant Party

A Person that is not ICE Clear Credit, a Participant or an Affiliate of a Participant (provided that a Client-Carrying Broker (including a Client Carrying Broker that is an Affiliate of a Participant) acting in its capacity as such will be deemed a Non-Participant Party for purposes of the Rules). Non-Participant Parties include, without limitation, a "[cleared swaps customer](#)" as defined in CFTC Rule [4.322.1](#) (other than a holder of a [cleared swaps](#) proprietary account as defined in such rule).

Non-Participant ~~Pro Rata Share~~ Party Portfolio

~~For each Non-Participant Party of a Participant, a percentage equal to (i) the Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin for such Non-Participant Party with respect to [The portfolio of rights and obligations under Client-Related Positions with that allocated to a particular Non-Participant](#) divided by (ii) the aggregate Minimum [Party in the books and records of](#) ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin for all Non-Participant Parties with respect to Client-Related Positions with that Participant. [for purposes of CFTC Rule 22.15.](#)~~

Novation Time

The meaning specified in Rule 309.

Obligations

All obligations of a Participant arising under these Rules or any agreements between such Participant and ICE Clear Credit, in each case however created, arising or evidenced, whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, existing, due or to become due.

OFAC

The meaning specified in Rule 208.

Open Positions

A Participant's open positions in Contracts with ICE Clear Credit created pursuant to Rule 301 or as otherwise provided in these Rules and not offset pursuant to Rule 304 or closed pursuant to the Closing-out Process. Both Client-Related Positions and House Positions shall constitute Open Positions for the purposes of these Rules.

Parent

The meaning specified in Rule 205.

Participant

A person that has been approved by ICE Clear Credit for the submission of Contracts and that is party to an agreement with ICE Clear Credit specifically relating to transactions in Contracts (a "**Participant Agreement**").

~~Participant Excess Margin~~

~~Any initial margin required by a Participant from a Non-Participant Party in respect of a Client-Related Position in excess of the Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin.~~

Participant's Required Segregated Customer Funds

The meaning specified in Rule 201.

Person

An individual, sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company, association, firm, trust, corporation or other entity, as the context may require.

President

The President of ICE Clear Credit.

Retiring Participant

A Participant who has notified ICE Clear Credit pursuant to the terms of its Participant Agreement of its intention to terminate its status as a Participant or who has been notified by ICE Clear Credit pursuant to the terms of its Participant Agreement or these Rules of ICE Clear Credit's intention to terminate its status as a Participant.

Trading Activity Limitation

The meaning specified in Rule 203.

Transfer

- (a) With respect to any Margin, Collateral or other assets required to be delivered by a Participant to ICE Clear Credit (i) in the case of cash, payment or delivery by wire transfer into one or more bank accounts specified by ICE Clear Credit (which may be a relevant Margin Account), (ii) in the case of securities or other financial assets that can be paid or delivered by book-entry, the crediting of such securities or other financial assets to a securities account specified by ICE Clear Credit (which may be a Margin Account), and (iii) in the case of neither cash nor securities or other financial assets that can be paid or delivered by book-entry, in accordance with the instructions of ICE Clear Credit; and
- (b) With respect to any Margin, Collateral or other assets required to be delivered by ICE Clear Credit to a Participant, in any manner specified herein including, without limitation, (i) in the case of Mark-to-Market Margin, by crediting such Margin to such Participant's House Margin Account or ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account, as applicable, deeming such Margin as having been Transferred by such Participant to ICE Clear Credit and making such Margin available for withdrawal by the Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, (ii) in the case of Initial Margin, making such Margin in such Participant's House Margin Account or ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account, as applicable, at ICE Clear Credit available for withdrawal by the Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, and (iii) in the case of other property to be returned to a Participant from a ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account in accordance with Rule 406, by making such property available for withdrawal in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures.

Value

The meaning specified in Rule 401(~~e~~).

Client-Related Position or a House Position of the relevant Participant (including, if applicable, for purposes of Rule 304(c)), and failing such designation, such Trade will be presumed to be a House Position of that Participant.

303. Adjustments.

Upon the clearance of a Trade pursuant to Rule 301(b), (c) or (e), regardless of the terms of the bilateral agreement between the submitting Participants the Trade between ICE Clear Credit and each such Participant shall have an Initial Payment of zero.

304. Offsets.

- (a) Subject to subsection (b) below, where, pursuant to Rule 301, or as otherwise provided in these Rules, a Participant has entered into Trades that are House Positions or Client-Related Positions with ICE Clear Credit that constitute opposite positions which are identical in all material respects (other than notional or other reference amount and the application of Rule 613) in a single Contract, then at the applicable time and in the manner to be specified in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, the second such Trade shall be deemed pro tanto a settlement or adjustment of the prior transaction and, therefore, a reduction in the relevant Open Position. Thereupon, such Participant shall possess no further rights and be under no further liability with respect thereto only to the extent of such settlement or adjustment.
- (b) In no event shall any Client-Related Position be offset against any House Position or any House Position be offset against any Client-Related Position, in either case pursuant to subsection (a) above, except as provided in subsection (c) below. Client-Related Positions ~~identified by a Participant to ICE Clear Credit as relating to~~that are part of the same Non-Participant Party Portfolio may be offset against each other pursuant to subsection (a) hereof. Client-Related Positions ~~identified by a Participant to ICE Clear Credit as relating to~~that are part of different Non-Participant ~~Parties~~Party Portfolios may not be offset against each other pursuant to subsection (a) hereof; provided that such Client-Related Positions shall be deemed to be offset against each other for purposes of determining the Participant's ~~net Margin requirements with respect thereto (including the~~Net Client-Related Initial~~Mark-to-Market~~ Margin ~~requirement)~~Requirement and any ~~obligation of net payment or settlement amount owed by~~ thereto at any timesuch Client-Related Positions under the Rules, and in addition such positions may be offset against each other by ICE Clear Credit following a Default as set forth in these Rules.

- (a) The Mark-to-Market Price of each Open Position,
- (b) The Margin Requirement,
- (c) The Margin then on deposit with respect to such Margin Category, and
- (d) The Net [House](#) Margin Requirement.
- (e) [The Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement](#)

... **Interpretations and Policies:**

- .01 For the purposes of this Rule, the term “Open Positions” shall also include Trades that have been accepted by ICE Clear Credit pursuant to Rule 309 but not yet novated or established pursuant to Rule 301 because the Novation Time has not yet occurred.

308. Statement of Initial Margin.

At or around the time a Statement of Open Positions is made available pursuant to Rule 307, ICE Clear Credit shall also make available to each Participant a statement (separately for Client-Related Positions and House Positions) showing the following with respect to each Initial Margin Category, as described in the Chapter 4 Rules (or any corresponding Rules in any product-specific Chapter):

- (a) The Margin Requirement,
- (b) The Margin then on deposit with respect to such Margin Category, and
- (c) The Net [House](#) Margin Requirement.
- (d) [The Non-Participant Party Portfolio Margin Requirement for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio.](#)

309. Acceptance of Trades by ICE Clear Credit.

- (a) ICE Clear Credit shall accept the submission of Trades for clearance hereunder only from or on behalf of Participants (who may be acting for themselves or a Non-Participant Party). A Trade is accepted upon ICE Clear Credit’s notice, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, to the relevant Participant(s) that ICE Clear Credit has accepted a Trade submitted for clearance.

4. MARGIN

401. Margin Generally.

(a) House Margin.

ICE Clear Credit shall, following the close of business on each ICE Business Day, and may, at any other time or times selected by ICE Clear Credit, determine the Margin requirement for a Participant in respect of House Positions with respect to each category of Initial Margin and of Mark-to-Market Margin (each, a “**Margin Category**”, and the related Margin requirement, a “**Margin Requirement**”). For each Margin Category for a Participant and for a given ICE Business Day, ICE Clear Credit shall calculate a net amount (a “**Net House Margin Requirement**”) (i) in the case of an Initial Margin Category, equal to the Participant’s Margin Requirement for such Initial Margin Category as of such ICE Business Day minus the Value of the Participant’s Margin held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Initial Margin Category and (ii) in the case of a Mark-to-Market Margin Category, equal to the Participant’s Margin Requirement for such Mark-to-Market Margin Category (expressed as a positive number if owed by the Participant and a negative number if owed by ICE Clear Credit) minus the Value of the Participant’s Margin held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Mark-to-Market Margin Category or plus the Value of ICE Clear Credit’s Margin held or deemed held by the Participant as Margin for such Mark-to-Market Margin Category, as applicable. With respect to each Margin Category for a Participant:

- (i) if the Net House Margin Requirement is negative, ICE Clear Credit shall (unless the Participant is, or a determination by ICE Clear Credit is pending as to whether the Participant is, in Default), with respect to Eligible Margin having a Value as close as reasonably practicable to (but not to exceed) the absolute value of the Net House Margin Requirement, (A) in the case of Mark-to-Market Margin, Transfer such Eligible Margin to the Participant, which Eligible Margin would, as applicable, either be applied to a Net House Margin Requirement for an Initial Margin Category or be available for withdrawal by the Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, to the extent there is any excess after satisfying the Margin Requirement for each Initial Margin Category or (B) in the case of Initial Margin, Transfer such Eligible Margin to the Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, to the extent there is any excess after satisfying the Margin Requirement for each Initial Margin Category.
- (ii) if the Net House Margin Requirement is positive, the Participant shall Transfer to ICE Clear Credit, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, Eligible Margin having a Value at least equal to the Net

House Margin Requirement, with such Transfer required to be made prior to the time established by ICE Clear Credit in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures for this purpose on the ICE Business Day next following the ICE Business Day to which the close of business Net House Margin Requirement relates (or, if ICE Clear Credit notifies a Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, of a Net House Margin Requirement other than in respect of its close of business determinations, within one ICE Clear Credit business hour of such notice); *provided* that (i) to the extent there is cash in a Participant's House Margin Account in the relevant currency, ICE Clear Credit may withdraw from such account such cash to satisfy a Net ~~Margin Requirement for a Mark-to-Market Margin Category for the relevant House Position(s), and (ii) to the extent there is cash in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account in the relevant currency, ICE Clear Credit may withdraw from such account such cash (up to the amount of the outstanding Net Client Omnibus Margin Amount) to satisfy a Net~~House Margin Requirement for a Mark-to-Market Margin Category for the relevant ~~Client-Related~~House Position(s), ~~as applicable, and in either case~~ adjust the Participant's Net House Margin Requirements accordingly; or

(iii) if the Net House Margin Requirement is zero, no Margin shall be required to be Transferred.

(b) **Client-Related Margin.**

ICE Clear Credit shall, following the close of business on each ICE Business Day, and may, at any other time or times selected by ICE Clear Credit, determine the Margin Requirement for a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions with respect to each Margin Category.

(i) **Initial Margin.**

ICE Clear Credit shall calculate, in the case of an Initial Margin Category, the Participant's Margin Requirement for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio minus the Value of the Margin held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Initial Margin Category allocated by ICE Clear Credit to such Non-Participant Party Portfolio (each, a the "Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement"); With respect to each Initial Margin Category for a Participant:

(A) for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement that is positive, the Participant shall Transfer to ICE Clear Credit, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, Eligible Margin having a Value at least equal to such Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement, with such Transfer required to be made prior to the time established by ICE Clear Credit in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures for this

purpose on the ICE Business Day next following the ICE Business Day to which the close of business Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement relates (or, if ICE Clear Credit notifies a Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, of a Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement other than in respect of its close of business determinations, within one ICE Clear Credit business hour of such notice);

- (B) following the settlement in full of all amounts due to be Transferred to ICE Clear Credit pursuant to clause (A) above, for each Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement that is negative, ICE Clear Credit shall (unless the Participant is, or a determination by ICE Clear Credit is pending as to whether the Participant is, in Default), with respect to Eligible Margin having a Value as close as reasonably practicable to (but not to exceed) the absolute value of such Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement, Transfer such Eligible Margin to the Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures;
- (C) if a Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirement is zero, no Margin shall be required to be Transferred in respect thereof;

(ii) **Mark-to-Market Margin.**

ICE Clear Credit shall calculate, in the case of a Mark-to-Market Margin Category, a net amount equal to the Participant's net Margin Requirement for such Mark-to-Market Margin Category for all Client-Related Positions in all Non-Participant Party Portfolios (expressed as a positive number if owed by the Participant and a negative number if owed by ICE Clear Credit) minus the Value of the Participant's Margin held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Mark-to-Market Margin Category or plus the Value of ICE Clear Credit's Margin held or deemed held by the Participant as Margin for such Mark-to-Market Margin Category, as applicable (the "**Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement**"). With respect to each Mark-to-Market Margin Category for a Participant:

- (A) if the Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement is positive, the Participant shall Transfer to ICE Clear Credit, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, Eligible Margin having a Value at least equal to the Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement, with such Transfer required to be made prior to the time established by ICE Clear Credit in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures for this purpose on the ICE Business Day next following the ICE Business Day to which the close of business Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement relates (or, if ICE Clear Credit notifies a Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, of a Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin

Requirement other than in respect of its close of business determinations, within one ICE Clear Credit business hour of such notice);

- (B) if the Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement is negative, ICE Clear Credit shall (unless the Participant is, or a determination by ICE Clear Credit is pending as to whether the Participant is, in Default), with respect to Eligible Margin having a Value as close as reasonably practicable to (but not to exceed) the absolute value of the Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement, Transfer such Eligible Margin to the Participant, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures; and
- (C) if the Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement is zero, no Margin shall be required to be Transferred in respect thereof.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, amounts required to be Transferred between a Participant and ICE Clear Credit pursuant to any of clauses (i)(A)-(C) and/or (ii)(A)-(C) above of this subsection (b) shall not be netted or offset, except to the extent such netting or offset may be permitted by applicable law (including CFTC regulation or interpretation thereof).

- (c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in determining each Participant's Margin Requirement as described above, ICE Clear Credit shall make separate Margin Requirement calculations for a Participant's Client-Related Positions and for a Participant's House Positions, notwithstanding that such positions would otherwise be in the same Margin Category. In no event shall the Margin Requirements for a Participant's Client-Related Positions and House Positions be netted or offset against each other (except as specifically provided in these Rules), nor shall any ~~Excess~~ Margin held or released in respect of Client-Related Positions be applied at any time to any Margin Requirement in respect of House Positions.

The Margin Requirement in respect of Initial Margin for a Participant's Client-Related Positions shall be calculated on a gross basis across each Non-Participant Party Portfolio (i.e., on the basis that all Client-Related Positions related to different Non-Participant ~~Parties~~Party Portfolios have not been offset pursuant to Rule 304 ~~(i.e., on a "gross" margin basis), regardless of whether ICE Clear Credit or such Participant otherwise records such Client-Related Positions as being so offset for any other purposes. Participant shall Transfer the appropriate Excess Margin in respect of Client-Related Positions to ICE Clear Credit as provided in Rule 406.)~~.

- (ed) **"Eligible Margin"** means (i) with respect to Initial Margin, (A) in the case of satisfaction of ~~a Net~~an Initial Margin ~~Requirement~~requirement, dollars or other currencies acceptable to ICE Clear Credit for this purpose and (B) in the case of substitutions of Initial Margin, assets, in the case of each of clauses (A) and (B),

as specified in Schedule 401 as in effect from time to time and (ii) with respect to Mark-to-Market Margin, the currency in which the Contracts for the applicable Mark-to-Market Margin Category are denominated. Currencies must be in immediately available funds to qualify as Eligible Margin.

- (de) “Value” means, (i) with respect to Eligible Margin consisting of dollars or another currency that qualifies as Eligible Margin for the applicable Margin Category, the amount thereof converted, if applicable, to the currency of the relevant ~~Net~~ Margin Requirement at such exchange rate as ICE Clear Credit in its discretion may determine from time to time pursuant to the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, (ii) with respect to Eligible Margin consisting of assets, other than currencies, that qualify as Eligible Margin for the applicable Margin Category, the value thereof as determined by ICE Clear Credit (or its agent or custodian) pursuant to a methodology established by ICE Clear Credit from time to time in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, and (iii) with respect to any currency or asset that does not qualify as Eligible Margin for the applicable Margin Category, zero.
- (ef) ICE Clear Credit shall establish and maintain a House Margin Account and a ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account for each Participant. All ~~Client-Related~~ Initial Margin ~~and Excess Margin~~ required with respect to a Participant’s Client-Related Positions shall be Transferred to such Participant’s ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account. All Initial Margin required with respect to House Positions of such Participant shall be Transferred to such Participant’s House Margin Account.
- (fg) ICE Clear Credit shall charge a Participant interest for any net Mark-to-Market Margin Transferred by ICE Clear Credit to the Participant and shall pay a Participant interest for any net Mark-to-Market Margin Transferred by the Participant to ICE Clear Credit and for any cash Margin in such Participant’s Margin Accounts, in each case at an interest rate and on a frequency determined from time to time by ICE Clear Credit in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures.
- (gh) A Participant may substitute, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures and applicable law, Eligible Margin for an amount of Margin in such Participant’s House Margin Account or ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account, as applicable, having a Value not to exceed such substitute Eligible Margin.
- (hi) Margin ~~or Excess Margin~~ required to be provided by a Participant hereunder shall be provided at the time and in the manner specified in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures. Where ~~Margin or Excess~~ Margin is available for withdrawal by a Participant in accordance with these Rules, if such Participant requests such withdrawal on an ICE Business Day by the deadline established in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, ICE Clear Credit will transfer such margin to the relevant account of the Participant on such ICE Business Day.

(j) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if ICE Clear Credit determines one or more Non-Participant Party Portfolio Initial Margin Requirements or a Net Client-Related Mark-to-Market Margin Requirement in respect of a time other than its close of business determination (i.e., an intraday margin call) that would otherwise be required to be Transferred by a Participant in accordance with subsection (b) above, ICE Clear Credit may in lieu thereof increase the applicable Margin Requirement for House Positions for the applicable Margin Category.

. . . **Interpretations and Policies:**

.01 Margin required to be Transferred by a Participant shall be considered timely Transferred to ICE Clear Credit if (i) such Participant's settlement bank guarantees, in a form acceptable to ICE Clear Credit, Transfer of such Margin prior to the time such Margin would be due in accordance with these Rules and (ii) such Margin is actually Transferred to ICE Clear Credit within a time period established by ICE Clear Credit.

.02 For the purposes of Chapter 4, the term "Open Positions" shall also include Trades that have been accepted by ICE Clear Credit pursuant to Rule 309 but not yet novated or established because the Novation Time has not yet occurred.

402. Transfer of Title; Liens.

(a) Each Participant (other than a Participant that is an FCM or a Broker-Dealer) agrees that all right, title and interest in and to any cash Transferred by such Participant to ICE Clear Credit under the terms of these Rules as ~~Margin, Excess Margin or Collateral~~ consisting of cash and all cash proceeds of any Margin, ~~Excess Margin~~ or Collateral (collectively, "**Cash Margin**") shall vest in ICE Clear Credit free and clear of any liens, claims charges or encumbrances. Upon the occurrence of a Default, ICE Clear Credit shall be entitled to apply such cash Transferred to ICE Clear Credit by such Defaulting Participant and any cash proceeds of the Margin and Collateral of such Defaulting Participant to the Obligations of such Defaulting Participant to ICE Clear Credit in accordance with the provisions herein; provided that cash Transferred in respect of Client-Related Positions and constituting ~~Margin or Excess~~ Margin and cash proceeds of ~~Margin or Excess~~ Margin provided in respect of Client-Related Positions may only be applied to Obligations in respect of Client-Related Positions as set forth herein and only subject to the limitation set forth in subsection (h) below. Prior to the completion of the requirements under these Rules for the occurrence of a Default, ICE Clear Credit shall also be entitled to apply such cash to the Obligations of a Participant (but subject to the proviso to the preceding sentence)

if such Participant has defaulted with respect to making a payment or delivery when due under these Rules or a Contract.

- (b) Each Participant hereby grants to ICE Clear Credit a continuing lien and security interest in and to and right of set-off against all of the Participant's right, title and interest, whether now owned or existing or hereafter acquired or arising, in and to (i) all securities, financial assets and other property (other than cash) Transferred by such Participant to ICE Clear Credit under the terms of these Rules as ~~Margin, Excess~~ Margin or Collateral not constituting cash, (ii) all non-cash proceeds of any of the foregoing and (iii) in the case of a Participant that is an FCM or a Broker-Dealer, any cash Transferred by such Participant to ICE Clear Credit under the terms of these Rules as ~~Margin, Excess~~ Margin or Collateral consisting of cash, and all cash proceeds of any ~~Margin, Excess~~ Margin or Collateral, in each case as security for the Obligations of such Participant to ICE Clear Credit (jointly, (i), (ii) and (iii), the "**Pledged Items**"); provided that Pledged Items Transferred in respect of Client-Related Positions and constituting ~~Margin or Excess~~ Margin shall only secure Obligations of such Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions and shall be subject to the limitation set forth in subsection (h) below and applicable law. Upon the withdrawal of Pledged Items by a Participant from its House Margin Account or ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account, as applicable, in accordance with these Rules and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, the security interest and lien granted hereunder on such Pledged Items will be released immediately without any further action by either party. With respect to Pledged Items in the form of cash credited to the House Account of a Participant and constituting Mark-to-Market Margin, ICE Clear Credit will have the right to sell, pledge, rehypothecate, assign, invest, use or otherwise dispose of or use in its business such Pledged Items, free from any claim or right of any nature whatsoever of the Participant, including any equity or right of redemption by the Participant, subject to any requirements of the Rules, and with respect to other Pledged Items credited to the House Account of a Participant constituting Initial Margin, ICE Clear Credit may use, invest or apply such Pledged Items as permitted by the Rules. With respect to Pledged Items credited to the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account of a Participant, the Clearing House will only have the right to use, invest or apply such Pledged Items as permitted by the Rules and applicable law.
- (c) Upon the occurrence of a Default, ICE Clear Credit may exercise all rights of a secured party under applicable law and under these Rules. ICE Clear Credit may, without being required to give any notice, except as may be required by law, sell or otherwise apply any Pledged Items Transferred to, or otherwise under the control of, ICE Clear Credit to satisfy the Participant's Obligations. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ICE Clear Credit may only exercise such rights with respect to, or otherwise dispose of or sell, Pledged Items Transferred in respect of Client-Related Positions and constituting Margin ~~or Excess Margin~~ (including Pledged Items Transferred to the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin

- (f) With respect to Pledged Items Transferred to the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account of a Participant under Rule 406, ICE Clear Credit agrees that such Pledged Items, together with any proceeds thereof, shall constitute customer property held for the benefit of the Non-Participant Parties of Participant in accordance with applicable law and Rule 406, subject to the security interest and lien of ICE Clear Credit pursuant to subsection (b). For the avoidance of doubt, each Participant shall be obligated to Transfer Margin ~~and Excess Margin~~ to ICE Clear Credit in respect of Client-Related Positions in accordance with these Rules notwithstanding any failure of a Non-Participant Party to provide such Participant with related margin in respect of such Client-Related Position.
- (g) Where a Participant makes a partial Transfer of the Margin required to be Transferred on any date to ICE Clear Credit in respect of both Client-Related Positions and House Positions, such Margin shall be applied first to the outstanding Margin Requirement in respect of the Client-Related Positions until satisfied and thereafter to the outstanding Margin Requirement in respect of the House Positions, notwithstanding any designation made by the Participant as to the application of such Margin.
- (h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, ICE Clear Credit shall only be permitted to use, apply or otherwise exercise rights pursuant to subsections (a), (b) and (c) above with respect to Cash Margin and Pledged Items (or the proceeds thereof) posted in respect of Client-Related Positions and constituting Initial Margin ~~or Excess Margin in an aggregate amount for any Default not to exceed the most recently calculated Net Client Omnibus Margin Amount as of the relevant time; provided that Excess Margin of a Non-Participant Party may also be used solely as provided in these Rules~~ to the extent permitted under applicable law, including without limitation CFTC Rule 22.15 (and any interpretations of the CFTC or its staff in respect thereof). For the avoidance of doubt, but subject to the foregoing sentence, ICE Clear Credit shall be permitted to select the specific assets so used or applied.

403. Initial Margin.

“Initial Margin” shall consist of the Margin Categories listed in this Rule (collectively, the “Initial Margin Categories”). With respect to each Initial Margin Category, ICE Clear Credit shall determine the Margin Requirement pursuant to one or more methodologies established by ICE Clear Credit from time to time in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures. To protect itself and the other Participants, ICE Clear Credit may deviate from applying the methodologies uniformly to each Participant if ICE Clear Credit determines it appropriate to do so for risk management purposes in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures. Margin Requirements with respect to an Initial Margin Category shall be expressed as a positive number or as zero, as applicable.

- (a) **“Portfolio Risk Margin”** means the Margin ICE Clear Credit requires related to the size and risk of a Participant’s Open Positions.
- (b) **“Physical Settlement Margin”** means the Margin ICE Clear Credit requires to secure a Participant’s obligations to another Participant pursuant to a bilateral agreement relating to a Contract that has been allocated to a pair of Participants for purposes of effecting physical settlement.
- (c) **“Super or Special Margin”** means additional Margin ICE Clear Credit may require for any purpose at any time and from time to time in its sole discretion.

404. Mark-to-Market Margin.

- (a) **“Mark-to-Market Margin”** means the Margin required as a result of the market value of a Participant’s Open Positions. Each currency in which Contracts are denominated shall be treated as a separate Margin Category (each, a **“Mark-to-Market Margin Category”**). With respect to a Participant, the Margin Requirement for a Mark-to-Market Margin Category shall be the sum of the value of each Open Position in such Margin Category, determined by ICE Clear Credit by the application of the Mark-to-Market Price for the relevant Contract (expressed as a positive number if owed by the Participant and a negative number if owed by ICE Clear Credit). Margin Requirements with respect to a Mark-to-Market Margin Category shall be expressed as a positive or negative number or as zero, as applicable.
- (b) **“Mark-to-Market Price”** means, for each Contract, the price determined in the manner designated by ICE Clear Credit for such Contract from time to time in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures. Notwithstanding the foregoing, when deemed necessary by ICE Clear Credit in order to protect the respective interests of ICE Clear Credit and Participants, ICE Clear Credit may set the Mark-to-Market Price for any Contract at a price deemed appropriate by ICE Clear Credit under the circumstances. When ICE Clear Credit determines that circumstances necessitate the application of the preceding sentence, the reasons for that determination and the basis for the establishment of the Mark-to-Market Price in such circumstances shall be recorded as provided in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures. To aid in the establishment of Mark-to-Market Prices, Participants are required to submit end of day prices in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures. The submission of those prices may result in a bilateral transaction which will subsequently be cleared in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures.

405. ~~Transition Rule for Non-Participant Contracts of Non-FCM Participants and Non-Broker-Dealer Participants.~~ Intentionally Omitted.

~~Effective as of the DCO/SCA Conversion Date, each Participant that had outstanding Client-Related Positions (and related Non-Participant Contracts) under Rule 405 of the ICE Trust Rules as in effect prior to such date shall, to the extent possible after making good faith efforts and acting in a commercially reasonable manner, transfer such positions to FCM Participants or to Broker-Dealer Participants, as the case may be, to be maintained in accordance with Rule 406 (in which case such Non-Participant Contracts will terminate upon such transfer). ICE Clear Credit may adopt additional procedures with respect to such transfer.~~

406. Certain Requirements with Respect to Client-Related Positions of FCM Participants and Broker-Dealer Participants.

The provisions of this Rule 406 shall apply to Participants that are FCMs and/or Broker-Dealers in respect of Client-Related Positions. Without limiting Rule 312, ICE Clear Credit shall have no obligation or liability to any Non-Participant Party in respect of a Client-Related Position or any transaction, agreement or arrangement between a Participant and any Non-Participant Party. For the avoidance of doubt, Participants carrying Client-Related Positions that are swaps must be FCMs, and Participants carrying Client-Related Positions that are security-based swaps must be Broker-Dealers.

- (a) The relationship between a Non-Participant Party and a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions for that Non-Participant Party shall be documented pursuant to and governed by a futures account agreement or clearing agreement (or equivalent document) agreed between such parties ("**Customer Account Agreement**"), subject to the applicable provisions of the Rules.
- (b) A Participant shall require each Non-Participant Party to provide margin or collateral ("**Non-Participant Collateral**") in an amount no less than the amount of Margin of each applicable Margin Category required on a gross basis by ICE Clear Credit with respect to the relevant Client-Related Position(s); provided that ICE Clear Credit may require additional margin with respect to Non-Participant Parties (or certain categories of Non-Participant Parties) as determined by ICE Clear Credit from time to time as required by applicable law. For this purpose, "gross basis" shall mean that the margin requirement will be determined giving effect to any offset of such Client-Related Positions against Client-Related Positions relating to the same Non-Participant Party, but without any offset of such Client-Related Positions against Client-Related Positions relating to a different Non-Participant Party. ~~With respect to Initial Margin, such minimum amount determined on a gross basis for Client-Related Positions (together with any additional amount required by ICE Clear Credit as provided above) related to a particular Non-Participant Party shall be referred to herein as the "**Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin**" for that Non-Participant Party. The Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin for a Non-Participant Party,~~

~~together with any Participant Excess Margin for such Non-Participant Party, shall be referred to herein as the “Non-Participant Initial Margin” for such party.~~

- (c) (i) A Participant shall receive, hold and use all Non-Participant Collateral only as permitted under CEA Section 4d(f) and the rules thereunder (including Part 22 of the CFTC Regulations and any interpretations thereof by the CFTC or its staff) and Securities Exchange Act ~~Section~~Sections 3E(b) and/or 15(c)(3) and the rules thereunder, as applicable, and to the extent not inconsistent with the foregoing, as set forth in these Rules and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures (the “**Swap Customer Segregation Requirements**”). All ~~customer~~ property Transferred to ICE Clear Credit by Participant on behalf of Non-Participant Parties shall be held in the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account of such Participant as cleared swaps customer property in accordance with the Swap Customer Segregation Requirements. Pursuant to this Rule, Participant shall satisfy the requirement to obtain any segregation acknowledgement letter from ICE Clear Credit under the Swap Customer Segregation Requirements.
- (ii) Without limiting subsection (c)(i) above, the Client-Related Positions (including, solely to the extent permitted by applicable rules, orders or exemptions of the CFTC and SEC, Client-Related Positions that are security-based swaps) and related Non-Participant Collateral shall be held in part of the cleared ~~swaps~~swaps account class for purposes of Part 190 of the CFTC regulations. ~~All Non-Participant Collateral Transferred to ICE Clear Credit by Participant on behalf of Non-Participant Parties shall be held in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account as customer property separated from the proprietary positions and margin of such Participant. Such customer property shall be treated by ICE Clear Credit as belonging to the applicable Non-Participant Parties of Participant.~~
- (d) ~~Prior to the effectiveness of the Swap Customer Segregation Requirements, the Client-Related Positions and related Non-Participant Collateral shall be held in the cleared OTC derivative account class for purposes of Part 190 of the CFTC regulations. All Non-Participant Collateral Transferred to ICE Clear Credit by Participant on behalf of Non-Participant Parties shall be held in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account as customer property separated from the proprietary positions and margin of such Participant. Such customer property shall be treated by ICE Clear Credit as belonging to the Non-Participant Parties of Participant. Subject to the foregoing and to any requirements in respect of the cleared OTC derivative account class that may be adopted by the CFTC, the Participant and ICE Clear Credit shall treat such customer property in the manner required for segregated customer property with respect to futures contracts under CFTC Rules 1.20-1.30; provided that such customer property shall be accounted for and held separately from, and not in any event commingled with, any such segregated customer property for futures contracts; provided, further, that such customer property may be commingled by Participant with customer property~~

~~segregated or sequestered for purposes of the cleared OTC derivatives account class under the rules of other derivatives clearing organizations to the extent such rules are not inconsistent with the requirements hereof.(e)
Non-Participant Collateral posted in respect of the ICE Clear Credit Minimum Required Initial~~

Property held in the Client Omnibus Margin Account may only be applied in respect of Client-Related Positions ~~for purposes of these Rules to the extent of the Net Client Omnibus Margin Amount or as otherwise provided herein. Accordingly, Non-Participant Collateral of Non-Participant Parties, whether or not such parties are themselves in default, is at risk as provided in the preceding sentence if there is a Default by a Participant affecting Client-Related Positions. ICE Clear Credit shall not be entitled to use or apply Excess Margin, to satisfy Obligations of a Participant except as expressly set forth herein; provided that ICE Clear Credit shall be entitled to transfer assets in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account (including Excess Margin) as set forth in Chapter 20A of these Rules as~~ provided in these Rules and only to the extent permitted by the Swap Customer Segregation Requirements (including CFTC Rule 22.15).

- (~~f~~e) ICE Clear Credit shall pass through to the relevant Participant the return on any assets in the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account (including any return provided by ICE Clear Credit on Cash therein), less administrative costs as determined by ICE Clear Credit.
- (g) ~~Each Participant will be required to identify in its books and records (i) the aggregate amount of the Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin Transferred that constitutes Excess Margin (the “Aggregate ICE Clear Credit Excess Margin”), (ii) the aggregate amount of Participant Excess Margin Transferred to the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account and (iii) the amount of assets in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account representing Excess Margin of each applicable Non-Participant Party (for such party, its “Excess Margin Amount”), including amounts in respect of both the Minimum ICE Clear Credit Required Initial Margin and any Participant Excess Margin. (hf)~~ In connection with any Client-Related Position and related Non-Participant Collateral, Participant shall keep and maintain written records required by the Swap Customer Segregation Requirements ~~(or, prior to the effectiveness of such requirements, as required under CFTC regulations for positions subject to segregation under CFTC Rule 1.20)~~. Each Participant shall provide such reports to ICE Clear Credit with respect to Non-Participant Parties and their related Client-Related Positions and Non-Participant Collateral as and when required under the Swap Customer Segregation Requirements and otherwise upon request of ICE Clear Credit and upon such other basis, if any, as is provided in the ICE Clear Credit Procedures.

- (g) Without limiting Rule 312, but subject to any contrary requirements of law: ICE Clear Credit shall not be liable to any Participant, Non-Participant Party or other Person for any losses, claims, liabilities, damages or expenses arising out of or relating to the holding, investment or use of the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account or assets credited thereto from time to time (“**Custodial Losses**”), except to the extent such Custodial Losses result from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of ICE Clear Credit. No Participant shall be liable to any Non-Participant Party for any Custodial Losses, except to the extent such Custodial Losses result from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Participant. ICE Clear Credit shall have no duties or responsibilities with respect to the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Accounts except as expressly set forth in these Rules and applicable law. ICE Clear Credit shall have no responsibility for any investment decisions by a Participant (or any other Person) with respect to assets in the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account or for the results of any such investments and shall have no obligation to monitor the value of the assets in the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account or any requirements set forth in any applicable agreement between Participant and a Non-Participant Party. ICE Clear Credit shall have no responsibility for the compliance by any Participant or Non-Participant Party with its obligations under any such agreement. ICE Clear Credit shall be under no obligation to inquire into, and shall be fully protected in relying on, any instructions or directions with respect to the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account or the assets therein or transferred thereto or therefrom under these Rules received from a Person ICE Clear Credit believes to be authorized to act on behalf of the appropriate Participant. In no event shall a Non-Participant Party attempt to interfere with the ability of ICE Clear Credit to exercise its rights as set forth in the Rules.
- (h) Except with respect to Client-Related Positions resulting from transactions entered into on a designated contract market or national securities exchange, each Non-Participant Party for which a Participant clears a Client-Related Position must be an “eligible contract participant” as defined in the CEA.
- (k) Each Non-Participant Party consents to the disclosure by its Participant to ICE Clear Credit of such Non-Participant Party’s identity and information concerning the Client-Related Positions held by such Participant for such Non-Participant Party and related margin as set forth in the Rules.
- (j) Each Non-Participant Party consents and agrees that in the event a Default has occurred with respect to its Participant or in the event of the insolvency of the Participant, (i) the Participant (or its receiver, insolvency trustee or similar official) and/or ICE Clear Credit shall be entitled to attempt to transfer its Client-Related Positions in accordance with Part 190 of the CFTC regulations, other applicable law and the Default Portability Rules, (ii) such Non-Participant Party appoints ICE Clear Credit as its lawful agent and attorney-in-fact to take such actions on behalf of the Non-Participant Party as ICE Clear Credit determines necessary or appropriate in order to effectuate the Default Portability Rules with respect to the

Client-Related Positions carried by the Participant for such Non-Participant Party, including executing any document or instrument with respect to the transfer of the Client-Related Positions and/or exercising rights and remedies to transfer such positions; (iii) the Non-Participant Party shall take no action, including but not limited to attempting to obtain a court order, that could interfere with the ability of the Participant, any receiver, insolvency trustee or similar official, or ICE Clear Credit to take action contemplated by its Rules, including, without limitation, the transfer of positions and the transfer of related margin or collateral; (iv) any determination made by ICE Clear Credit with respect to the termination value of a Client-Related Position under the Rules shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error and (v) any amount payable by such Non-Participant Party in respect of the termination of a Client-Related Position held by the Defaulting Participant for such Non-Participant Party shall not be netted or offset against any amount owed by such Participant to such Non-Participant Party under any other agreement or instrument and shall be paid directly to or as directed by ICE Clear Credit.

(mk) Each Participant shall be required to obtain the agreement of each Non-Participant Party to the provisions of the Rules applicable to or otherwise referring to Non-Participant Parties (including Rule 312 and this Rule 406) and hereby represents and warrants to ICE Clear Credit that it has obtained such agreement.

(l) ICE Clear Credit will not accept the deposit of Margin from a Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions in excess of the amount required by ICE Clear Credit, within the meaning of CFTC Rule 22.13(c). For the avoidance of doubt, any Margin deposited with ICE Clear Credit that subsequently exceeds the amount required by ICE Clear Credit as a result of a change in the amount required or a change in the Value of such Margin will become available for withdrawal in accordance with Rule 401.

407. UK and European Issues

(a) For the purposes of this Rule 407 only:

(i) **“Offer to the Public”** in relation to any Securities in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and any Securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for those Securities, as the same may be varied in that Relevant Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State;

(ii) **“PD Contract”** means any contract that is a Security and which is (A) a contract cleared or proposed to be cleared by ICE Clear Credit; or (B) a contract in relation to which ICE Clear Credit provides or proposes to

(as defined in Rule 803) (each, a “**Remaining Participant**”) equal to such Remaining Participant’s Required Contribution *divided by* the sum of all Remaining Participants’ Required Contributions *multiplied by* the number of Remaining Participants *multiplied by* the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution (as adjusted, if applicable, by the proviso below); *provided* that if the sum of all Remaining Participants’ Required Contributions *divided by* the number of Remaining Participants (the “**Average Contribution**”) is less than the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution, for the purposes of determining Tranche 1, the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution shall be deemed to be the Average Contribution and the remainder of the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution shall be applied, if at all, in accordance with Rule 802(b)(iv).

- (ii) “**Tranche 2**” shall consist of the excess of each Remaining Participant’s Required Contributions over the amounts thereof included in Tranche 1.

802. General Guaranty Fund Application.

- (a) If a Participant is in Default and, as a result thereof, ICE Clear Credit suffers any loss or expense in effecting the Closing-out Process, or a Participant shall fail to make any other payment or render any other performance required under these Rules or a Contract (such failure, an “**Obligation Failure**”), then ICE Clear Credit shall, after appropriate application of such Participant’s Margin (including, with respect to losses or expenses arising out of Client-Related Positions, Margin provided by such Participant in the Client Omnibus Margin Account solely to the extent such Margin is permitted to be used under the Rules and applicable law) and other funds in or payable to the accounts of such Participant and any amounts collected from any guarantor of such Participant ~~(other than Margin provided in respect of Client-Related Positions)~~, or may, prior to such application, charge to and apply against the Participant’s contributions to the General Guaranty Fund, in the manner and in the order of priority set forth below:
 - (i) **FIRST:** To the payment of the costs and expenses of any sale, collection or other realization of such Margin or Collateral or amounts deposited by others in the General Guaranty Fund, including, without limitation, fees and expenses of counsel, and all reasonable expenses, liabilities and advances made or incurred by ICE Clear Credit in connection therewith;
 - (ii) **SECOND:** To the payment of any Obligations relating to Open Positions or the Closing-out Process or any obligations of ICE Clear Credit, in either case, arising out of or in any way relating to such Participant’s Default or Obligation Failure (such obligations, together with the costs and expenses described in subparagraph (i), the

Fund by Participants pursuant to paragraph (d) of this Rule at the same proportionate rate of application as in Tranche 1 until the ICE Clear Credit Default Maximum is reached.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Rules, in no event shall more than the ICE Clear Credit Default Maximum be applied in the aggregate to the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution in the case of a single Participant Default and any Obligation Failure resulting in such Default. “**ICE Clear Credit Default Maximum**” means, at any time of determination, the lesser of (A) (x) prior to the second anniversary of the Customer Integration Date, the actual amount of the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution or (y) on or following the second anniversary of the Customer Integration Date, twenty-five million dollars and (B) the amount of the ICE Clear Credit Pro Rata Contribution that has been applied at the time all additional assets that Remaining Participants may be required to deposit in the General Guaranty Fund pursuant to paragraph (d) of this Rule have been applied.

As used herein, “**Remaining Reimbursement Obligations**” means those Reimbursement Obligations in respect of a Defaulting Participant that remain unsatisfied after application of available amounts pursuant to subsection (a) ~~and, in the case of Reimbursement Obligations in respect of Client-Related Positions only, after application of such Participant’s Margin in respect of Client-Related Positions and any Non-Participant Initial Margin of a defaulting Non-Participant Party in accordance with these Rules.~~ Available amounts pursuant to this subsection must be applied to Remaining Reimbursement Obligations in respect of Client-Related Positions and House Positions in proportion to the respective Initial Margin requirements of the Defaulting Participant in respect of such positions immediately prior to the Default, until the Remaining Reimbursement Obligations in respect of Client-Related Positions or House Positions are reduced to zero.

- (c) Any deficiency in respect of Obligations shall remain a liability of the Participant and any related guarantor to ICE Clear Credit, which ICE Clear Credit may collect from any Margin (to the extent permitted to be used under these Rules), Collateral or other assets of such Participant or such guarantor or by legal process. Any such collection by ICE Clear Credit shall be applied in the following order: (i) to the costs and expenses, including, without limitation, fees and expenses of counsel, of obtaining such collection, (ii) to any unreimbursed costs and expenses referred to in subparagraph (a)(i) of this Rule, (iii) to any deficiencies owed to Participants under Wound-up Contracts described in Rule 804, (iv) to the Participants and ICE Clear Credit whose contribution to the General Guaranty Fund was charged and applied for such deficiency pursuant to subparagraph (b)(iv) of this Rule (whether or not such Participant remains a Participant at the time of the collection), first to the Participants charged to the extent they were charged after the ICE Clear Credit Default Maximum was

reached and thereafter to the Participants and ICE Clear Credit, in each case in proportion to the amount each was charged and applied in accordance with subparagraph (b)(iv) of this Rule, up to the amount of such charge and application, (v) to the Participants whose contribution to Tranche 2 was charged and applied for such deficiency (whether or not such Participant remains a Participant at the time of the collection), in proportion to the amount each was charged and applied in accordance with subparagraph (b)(iii) of this Rule, up to the amount of such charge and application, (vi) to the Participants and ICE Clear Credit whose contribution to Tranche 1 was charged and applied for such deficiency (whether or not such Participant remains a Participant at the time of the collection), in proportion to the amount each was charged and applied in accordance with subparagraph (b)(ii) of this Rule, up to the amount of such charge and application, (vii) to ICE Clear Credit in respect of the charge and application against the ICE Clear Credit Priority Contribution, up to the amount of such charge and application; *provided* that ICE Clear Credit shall contribute any amount recovered in respect of this clause to the General Guaranty Fund for credit to the ICE Clear Credit Priority Contribution; (viii) to the ~~Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account (or to the Participant for distribution to the applicable Non-Participant Parties)~~, to the extent the Participant's Margin in respect of Client-Related Positions was applied to such deficiency; and (ix) to the payment of any other Obligations.

- (d) ***Additional Collateral Deposit.*** ICE Clear Credit shall notify Participants whenever an amount is charged to and applied against the General Guaranty Fund as provided in paragraphs (a) or (b) of this Rule (which notice will state the reason for such charge or application). If Reimbursement Obligations are charged to and applied against Collateral in the General Guaranty Fund pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) of this Rule and, as a result, the amount of Collateral credited to a Participant is less than the amount it was required to maintain pursuant to Rule 801 immediately prior to such charge and application, the Participant shall Transfer to ICE Clear Credit additional Collateral for deposit into the General Guaranty Fund in an amount at least sufficient to restore that Participant's Required Contribution; *provided* that, if a Participant is a Retiring Participant or provides notice that causes it to become a Retiring Participant prior to the time such deposit is due, the Participant's additional Transfer required pursuant to this sentence shall be limited to the excess, if any, of (i) such Participant's Required Contribution on the date of the most recent application of Collateral from the General Guaranty Fund pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Rule over (ii) the aggregate Transfers of Collateral to ICE Clear Credit for deposit in the General Guaranty Fund made by such Participant after it became a Retiring Participant (other than in respect of increases to its Required Contribution for periodic adjustments permitted under Rule 801) and any contributions of the Participant to the General Guaranty Fund in excess (as determined by ICE Clear Credit) of its Required Contribution (with respect to such Participant, such excess of clause (i) over

- (B) Each of the parties, at their own expense, shall have the right to be represented by counsel in any aspect of the proceeding.
 - (C) Each of the parties shall be entitled to (1) prepare and present all relevant facts in support of the Claims and grievances, defenses or counterclaims, and to present rebuttal evidence to such Claims or grievances, defenses or counterclaims made by the other parties, (2) examine the other parties, (3) examine any witnesses appearing at the hearing, and (4) examine all relevant documents presented in connection with the Claim or grievance, or any defense or counterclaim applicable thereto.
 - (D) The formal rules of evidence shall not apply.
 - (E) No verbatim record shall be made of the proceedings, unless requested by a party who shall bear the cost of such record. If such a request is made, a stenographic transcript shall be taken, but not transcribed unless requested by a party who shall bear the cost of such transcription.
 - (F) Ex parte contacts by any of the parties with members of the Panel shall not be permitted.
 - (G) The Panel shall have the power, on the request of any party or on its own motion, to require any Person to testify and/or to produce documentary evidence in the proceedings as and to the extent provided for in Rule 904.
- (vii) The Panel shall, within sixty (60) days of the termination of the hearing, render its award in writing and deliver a copy thereof either in person or by first-class mail to each of the parties. The Panel, in its award, may grant any remedy or relief which it deems just and equitable, including, without limitation, the awarding of interest and the arbitration fee; provided, however, that any costs incurred as a result of having a Mixed Panel shall be ~~born~~borne by the Participant unless the Panel determines that the Non-Participant Party acted in bad faith in initiating or conducting the proceeding. The award of the Panel shall be final and binding upon each of the parties to the arbitration, and judgment upon such award may be entered by any court having jurisdiction. Any Participant who is a Respondent in an arbitration conducted pursuant to the Rules shall notify the Legal Department of ICE Clear Credit of any judicial proceeding based on the award. In addition, any award, if not complied with within the time specified in the award, shall be enforceable by disciplinary proceedings pursuant to Rules.
- (viii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this paragraph (a), including the right of a Non-Participant Party to elect a Mixed Panel pursuant to Rule 903(a)(iii), if a Notice of Arbitration sets forth Claims or grievances aggregating less than \$100,001, and the Answering Statement submitted by the Respondent either

- (E) the CDS Participant or guarantor fails to pay any sum due and payable, or is otherwise in default under the terms of any agreement or threatens to suspend payment or to default under the terms of any agreement, in each case other than (i) where such payment or other relevant obligation is the subject of a good faith dispute by the CDS Participant or guarantor or (ii) where such failure or default is the result of an administrative or operational error on the part of the CDS Participant or guarantor and the relevant party had the financial ability to make the relevant payment or perform the relevant obligation at the time due;
 - (F) any distress, execution or other process is levied or enforced or served upon or against any property of the CDS Participant or guarantor; and
 - (G) any representation made or repeated or deemed to have been made or repeated by the CDS Participant or guarantor hereunder or under its Participant Agreement (other than a representation made under Section 29.3.1 or 29.3.3 of the Participant Agreement) provides to have been incorrect or misleading in any material respect when made or repeated or deemed to have been made or repeated.
- (b) If ICE Clear Credit determines to effect the Closing-out Process, ICE Clear Credit shall (i) convene the CDS Default Committee for purposes of making recommendations as to any Initial Cover Transactions referred to in paragraph (c)(ii) of this Rule and the appropriate auction or other process referred to in paragraph (c)(vi) of this Rule and related Minimum Target Price(s) and (ii) provide notice of such Default, including the identity of the Defaulting CDS Participant, as soon as reasonably practicable (but in any event before ICE Clear Credit executes any transactions described in paragraph (c) of this Rule) to the CDS Participants and to the public generally, through a press release or in another manner determined by ICE Clear Credit.
- (c) In effecting the Closing-out Process as provided in paragraph (a) of this Rule, ICE Clear Credit shall, without limiting the generality of paragraph (a) of this Rule, have the right, in consultation with the CDS Default Committee:
- (i) (A) With respect to the Open CDS Positions that are Client-Related Positions in any account of such Defaulting CDS Participant, to liquidate, set off and/or apply the following resources, ~~as applicable, (1) in the following order: (a) any proceeds received by ICE Clear Credit from closing or replacing such Open CDS Positions or any related Initial Cover Transactions, (b) in the following order, without duplication, (i) any Mark-to-Market Margin provided to ICE Clear Credit with respect to such Client-Related Positions, (ii) any Non-Participant Initial Margin (including Excess Margin) of a defaulting Non-Participant Party (to the extent of its obligation to the related Participant) and any proceeds thereof~~

~~(“Defaulting Client Margin”), and (iii) any amounts or proceeds received by ICE Clear Credit from or on behalf of the relevant Non-Participant Party under or in respect of the Client-Related Positions, including margin applied in satisfaction of a Non-Participant Party’s obligations thereunder (“Non-Participant Party Proceeds”), (c) any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Defaulting Participant’s House Positions, (d) the Defaulting Participant’s Required Contribution to the General Guaranty Fund as provided in Rule 802, (e) any other property of or delivered by the Defaulting CDS Participant (other than Margin for Client-Related Positions) within the possession or control of ICE Clear Credit (whether or not related to Open CDS Positions), and (f) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any other property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Initial Margin for such Defaulting Participant’s Client-Related Positions, subject to the limitation set forth in Rule 402(h), against (2) in the following order, to cover any amounts paid by ICE Clear Credit in closing or replacing such Client-Related Positions or any related Initial Cover Transactions (or in making payments or providing Mark-to-Market Margin to other Participants in respect of corresponding positions), including any commissions, losses, costs or expenses incurred in connection therewith or in connection with the liquidation of applicable Margin applied thereto pursuant to this subclause:~~

(a) any proceeds received by ICE Clear Credit from closing or replacing such Client-Related Positions or any related Initial Cover Transactions.

(b) any Mark-to-Market Margin provided to ICE Clear Credit with respect to such Client-Related Positions.

(c) Initial Margin provided to ICE Clear Credit with respect to such Client-Related Positions; provided that Initial Margin allocated to a particular Non-Participant Party Portfolio and proceeds thereof shall only be used to satisfy obligations to ICE Clear Credit in respect of the Client-Related Positions in such Non-Participant Party Portfolio, in accordance with CFTC Rule 22.15; provided, further, that where ICE Clear Credit owes a net payment or Mark-to-Market Margin obligation to another Participant in respect of positions corresponding to Client-Related Positions of the defaulting Participant, ICE Clear Credit shall be entitled to apply the Initial Margin allocated to each Non-Participant Party Portfolio that owes a corresponding payment or Mark-to-Market obligation to ICE Clear Credit up to the amount of such payment or obligation.

(d) any payments actually received by ICE Clear Credit from or on behalf of the relevant Non-Participant Party under or in respect of the Client-Related Positions in its Non-Participant Party Portfolio.

(e) any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Defaulting Participant's House Positions.

(f) the Defaulting Participant's Required Contribution to the General Guaranty Fund as provided in Rule 802, and

(g) any other property of or delivered by the Defaulting CDS Participant (other than Margin for Client-Related Positions) within the possession or control of ICE Clear Credit (whether ~~in the House Margin Account or Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account~~) and any other obligations of the Defaulting CDS Participant to ICE Clear Credit in respect of Client-Related Positions, including any obligations arising from any other accounts maintained by the Defaulting CDS Participant with ICE Clear Credit in respect of Client-Related Positions. or not related to Open CDS Positions).

For purposes of the foregoing, ICE Clear Credit may, in its discretion use assets available pursuant to clause ~~(ee)~~-(fg) prior to receipt of proceeds due pursuant to ~~clause clauses~~ (b)(ii) ~~or (iii)-(d)~~, provided that any proceeds subsequently received pursuant to ~~clause clauses~~ (b)-(iii) ~~or (iii)~~ (to the extent not applied by ICE Clear Credit) will be used to reimburse the sources of such other assets ~~(and, in the event assets were used pursuant to clause (f)), deposited in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account for distribution pursuant to subsection (l) below.~~ For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this clause (c)(i)(A) will not apply to Client-Related Positions transferred to or replaced with a Replacement Participant without loss to ICE Clear Credit pursuant to Rule 20A-02;

(B) With respect to the Open CDS Positions that are House Positions in any account of such Defaulting CDS Participant, to liquidate, set off and/or apply the following resources, ~~as applicable, (1) in the following order: (a) any proceeds received by ICE Clear Credit from closing or replacing such Open CDS Positions or any related Initial Cover Transactions, (b) any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Defaulting Participant's House Positions, (c) the Defaulting Participant's Required Contribution to the General Guaranty Fund as provided in Rule 802 and (d) any other property of or delivered by the Defaulting CDS Participant within the possession or control of ICE~~

~~Clear Credit (whether or not related to Open CDS Positions), other than any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin or Excess Margin for such Defaulting Participant's Client-Related Positions (including any amounts in the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account), against (2) in the following order, to cover~~ any amounts paid by ICE Clear Credit in closing or replacing such House Positions or any related Initial Cover Transactions (or in making payments or providing Mark-to-Market Margin to other Participants in respect of corresponding positions), including any commissions, losses, costs or expenses incurred in connection therewith or in connection with the liquidation of ~~Margin in the House Margin Account~~applicable Margin applied thereto pursuant to this subclause, and any other obligations of the Defaulting CDS Participant to ICE Clear Credit, including any obligations arising from any other accounts maintained by the Defaulting CDS Participant with ICE Clear Credit;

(a) any proceeds received by ICE Clear Credit from closing or replacing such House Positions or any related Initial Cover Transactions,

(b) any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Defaulting Participant's House Positions,

(c) the Defaulting Participant's Required Contribution to the General Guaranty Fund as provided in Rule 802, and

(d) any other property of or delivered by the Defaulting CDS Participant within the possession or control of ICE Clear Credit (whether or not related to Open CDS Positions), other than any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Defaulting Participant's Client-Related Positions (including any amounts in the Client Omnibus Margin Account).;

(C) Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent any (i) property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as Margin for such Defaulting Participant's House Positions or (ii) any other property of or delivered by the Defaulting CDS Participant within the possession or control of ICE Clear Credit, whether or not related to Open CDS Positions (other than any property or proceeds thereof deposited with or held by ICE Clear Credit as ~~Margin or Excess~~ Margin for such Defaulting Participant's Client-Related Positions and the Defaulting Participant's Required Contribution to the General Guaranty Fund as provided in Rule 802) is to be applied pursuant to both clauses (A) and (B) above, such property shall be applied first pursuant to clause (B) above in respect of House Positions until the relevant obligations are satisfied and thereafter pursuant to clause (A) above in respect of Client-Related Positions. The Defaulting

anything to the contrary in Rules 301 or 303, to make and receive “**Initial Payments**” with respect to such Trades; and

- (x) To take any other action as ICE Clear Credit may deem necessary or appropriate for its protection.
- (d) ICE Clear Credit shall effect the Closing-out Process separately in respect of Open CDS Positions that are Client-Related Positions and House Positions, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein but subject to the following sentence, Client-Related Positions and House Positions may not be netted or offset against each other as part of the Closing-out Process. Net amounts owed by a Defaulting Participant with respect to Client-Related Positions may be offset against net amounts owed to a Defaulting Participant with respect to House Positions; provided that net amounts owed by a Defaulting Participant with respect to House Positions may not be offset against net amounts owed to a Defaulting Participant with respect to Client-Related Positions. With respect to Client-Related Positions, the Closing-out Process shall be subject to the Default Portability Rules set forth in Rule 20A-02, if applicable. To the extent the Closing-out Process in respect of Client-Related Positions results in an amount owed by ICE Clear Credit to the Defaulting Participant, such amount ~~(the “ICE Clear Credit Client Termination Amount”)~~ will be credited to the ~~Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account for distribution to Non-Participant Parties~~ as provided in subsection (k) below. Amounts recovered by or on behalf of ICE Clear Credit from a Non-Participant Party of a Defaulting Participant in respect of Client-Related Positions will be similarly be credited to the ~~Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account for application pursuant to clause (c)(i)(A) above.~~ In effecting the Closing-out Process and/or the Default Portability Rules for Client-Related Positions (including the application of Margin posted in connection therewith under the Rules), ICE Clear Credit shall be entitled to rely conclusively on the allocation of Client-Related Positions to Non-Participant Party Portfolios, and the allocation of Margin to such Portfolios, as set forth in the books and records of ICE Clear Credit from time to time in accordance with CFTC Rule 22.15 (absent manifest error by ICE Clear Credit in making such allocation based on accurate information provided to ICE Clear Credit), without need for further inquiry by ICE Clear Credit as to the origin, source or ownership of any such Margin.

Without limiting ICE Clear Credit’s rights under the preceding sentence, if ICE Clear Credit applies Initial Margin allocated to a particular Non-Participant Party Portfolio pursuant to Rule 20-605(c)(i)(A)(c) above and subsequently determines that such Initial Margin was not the property of the relevant Non-Participant Party or the Defaulting CDS Participant (a “Reviewed Application”), ICE Clear Credit will seek, to the extent permitted by law, to apply any House Margin or Guaranty Fund Contribution of the Defaulting CDS Participant remaining after completion of the Closing-out Process to reimburse the Customer Omnibus Margin Account

up to the amount of the Reviewed Application. ICE Clear Credit shall have no obligation to rescind or otherwise refund any Reviewed Application or to apply any other assets (including, without limitation, any other assets in the Guaranty Fund) to any reimbursement pursuant to the preceding sentence.

- (e) In taking any action hereunder, ICE Clear Credit may cooperate, by sharing information or in any other manner it determines appropriate, with any Regulatory Body having jurisdiction over ICE Clear Credit or the Defaulting CDS Participant or its guarantor.
- (f) ICE Clear Credit may appoint any person to take or assist it in taking any action that it is allowed to take under this Rule.
- (g) (i) Before making any determination that a CDS Participant is in Default pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Rule, in the case of determinations under clause (i)(B)(z) and subparagraph (i)(C) of this paragraph (g) with respect to a Participant, ICE Clear Credit shall use its best efforts to consult with the Risk Committee, and, in the case of determinations under clauses (i)(B)(x) and (y) of this paragraph (g) with respect to any Participant, shall provide notice to the staff of the CFTC and SEC. A determination by ICE Clear Credit that a CDS Participant is in Default pursuant to paragraph (a) shall require:
 - (A) the decision of an Eligible Officer in the event the relevant Default is that such CDS Participant (1) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (2) institutes or has instituted against it, by a regulator, supervisor or any similar official with primary insolvency, rehabilitative or regulatory jurisdiction over it in the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization or the jurisdiction of its head or home office, a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law affecting creditors' rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up or liquidation by it or such regulator, supervisor or similar official; (3) has instituted against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law affecting creditors' rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up or liquidation and, in each case, such proceeding or petition results in a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or the entry of an order for relief or the making of an order for its winding-up or liquidation; or (4) seeks or becomes subject to the appointment of an administrator, provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or substantially all its assets;

other provisions of the Rules and additional agreements with the Defaulting CDS Participant, or any other source.

- (i) A Defaulting CDS Participant shall take no action, including but not limited to attempting to obtain a court order, that could interfere with the ability of ICE Clear Credit to take any action contemplated by this Rule, including, without limitation, to liquidate, set off and/or apply such Defaulting CDS Participant's Open CDS Positions, Margin or other property held by ICE Clear Credit, pursuant to these Rules or (ii) to set off amounts owed to such Defaulting CDS Participant against such Defaulting CDS Participant's Obligations.
- (j) If there is an Automatic Default, then ICE Clear Credit shall exercise its rights under this Rule in a manner consistent with the fact that all Open CDS Positions have automatically terminated in determining a single early termination amount in respect of Client-Related Positions and a single early termination amount in respect of House Positions, in each case payable by either ICE Clear Credit or the Defaulting CDS Participant pursuant to the Closing-out Process.
- (k) Upon the occurrence of a Default with respect to a CDS Participant that is an FCM or a Broker Dealer and completion of the Closing-out Process with respect thereto, ICE Clear Credit will return to the receiver, trustee or other applicable insolvency practitioner for such CDS Participant the amounts remaining in the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account (or the proceeds thereof) for distribution or application as provided by law.

20-617. CDS Default Committee.

- (a) ICE Clear Credit shall maintain a committee, governed by these Rules, responsible for taking certain actions provided in Rule 20-605 and Rule 20A-02 and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures upon the Default of a CDS Participant and as otherwise provided pursuant to these Rules (the "**CDS Default Committee**"). The CDS Default Committee shall be comprised of not more than three CDS Committee-Eligible Participants designated in accordance with Rule 20-617(b) (each, a "**CDS Default Committee Participant**"). Each CDS Default Committee Participant shall designate an employee of it or one of its Affiliates with credit default swap trading experience (an "**Eligible Employee**") to serve as its representative on the CDS Default Committee, along with one or more alternates in the event the designated employee is not available on a timely basis (the designated employee or alternate, as applicable, a "**CDS Default Committee Member**"). A CDS Default Committee Participant may replace its designated CDS Default Committee Member or alternate(s) with an Eligible Employee from time to time by notice to ICE Clear Credit.
- (b) ICE Clear Credit shall randomly order all CDS Committee-Eligible Participants into a list (the "**CDS Default Committee Participant List**"). For this purpose, if

20A. CDS PORTABILITY RULES

The rules in this Chapter 20A apply to the clearance of CDS Contracts.

20A-01. Portability Rules Where Participant is Not in Default.

- (a) Each Participant (other than a Defaulting Participant) (the “**Transferor Participant**”) that carries Client-Related Positions shall be required, upon request of a Non-Participant Party for whom such positions are carried to transfer such Participant’s rights and obligations with respect thereto to one or more other Participants (the “**Transferee Participants**”) designated by such Non-Participant Party, subject to the provisions of this Rule 20A-01 and, to the extent not inconsistent with this Rule 20A-01, to any terms agreed between such Participant and Non-Participant Party. Such transfer shall be effected as soon as practicable following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in subsection (b).
- (b) A transfer pursuant to subsection (a) shall be subject to the following conditions:
- (i) The Transferor Participant shall have no obligation to locate or obtain a Transferee Participant (which shall be the responsibility of the Non-Participant Party).
 - (ii) The transfer must be in accordance with any applicable legal requirements, including [CFTC Rule 39.15\(d\)](#) and applicable rules of the National Futures Association, and, to the extent permitted thereunder, any applicable agreement between the Transferor Participant and Non-Participant Party.
 - (iii) The Transferor Participant, Transferee Participant and Non-Participant Party shall have agreed and executed and submitted to ICE Clear Credit a transfer confirmation (the “**Transfer Confirmation**”) in a form approved by ICE Clear Credit (which may be written or electronic) specifying the following information:
 - (A) The Client-Related Positions to be transferred (the “**Transferred Transactions**”);
 - (B) The proposed transfer date (the “**Transfer Date**”), which shall be no earlier than the ICE Business Day of submission of the Transfer Confirmation to ICE Clear Credit and shall be an ICE Business Day;
 - (C) Whether relevant margin ~~of~~ [allocated to](#) the Non-Participant Party held in the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account is to be

- transferred to the Transferee Participant or returned to the Transferor Participant for distribution to the Non-Participant Party;
- (D) The amount of such margin, if any, to be so moved or returned in respect of the transferred or novated contracts; and
 - (E) Such other matters as ICE Clear Credit may specify.
- (iv) Prior to the applicable transfer time determined by ICE Clear Credit on the Transfer Date (the “**Transfer Time**”), if required by ICE Clear Credit, each of the Transferor Participant and the Transferee Participant shall have Transferred additional Margin in the amount specified by ICE Clear Credit to satisfy any additional Margin Requirements as a result of the proposed adjustments in Client-Related Positions pursuant to clause (c) below.
 - (iv) ICE Clear Credit has accepted such Transfer Confirmation, and the Transferor Participant and Transferee Participant have satisfied such other conditions as ICE Clear Credit may have specified.
- (c) If such conditions are satisfied, then as of the Transfer Time, the transfer shall occur as set forth in the Transfer Confirmation and ICE Clear Credit shall (i) adjust the outstanding Client-Related Positions of the Transferor Participant to reflect the transfer of Client-Related Positions related to the Transferred Transactions; (ii) adjust the outstanding Client-Related Positions of the Transferee Participant to reflect the transfer of the Transferred Transactions; (iii) adjust the Margin Requirements of the Transferor Participant and Transferee Participant to reflect such adjustments of outstanding Client-Related Positions; and (iv) transfer the applicable margin from the ~~Custodial~~ Client Omnibus Margin Account of the Transferor Participant to that of the Transferee Participant or return such margin to the Transferor Participant for distribution to the Non-Participant Party, as specified in the Transfer Confirmation.
 - (d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no Participant shall be required to accept transfer of any Client-Related Transaction as a Transferee Participant without its consent.
 - (e) Following the Transfer Time, each of the Transferor Participant and Transferee Participant must make appropriate submissions, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, to Deriv/SERV or another service specified by ICE Clear Credit to reflect the adjustments to its outstanding Client-Related Positions. The Non-Participant Party shall be required to make appropriate such submissions to reflect such novation.
 - (f) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any Transfer Confirmation, if a Default occurs with respect to a Transferor Participant prior to the Transfer Time for a transfer, such transfer (and any related Transfer Confirmation) will be

of no effect and ICE Clear Credit will not adjust the related Client-Related Positions pursuant to this Rule 20A-01.

20A-02. Post-Default Portability Rules.

- (a) If ICE Clear Credit determines to effect the Closing-out Process in respect of Client-Related Positions of a Defaulting Participant, ICE Clear Credit shall determine the loss to it with respect to the Client-Related Positions pursuant to the Closing-out Process and any shortfall in ~~the Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account (the “Net Client Omnibus Margin Shortfall”)~~ Margin allocated with respect to each Non-Participant Party Portfolio. The following additional provisions shall apply in respect of Client-Related Positions of such Defaulting Participant determined by ICE Clear Credit and the receiver, trustee or other insolvency practitioner for the Defaulting Participant to be eligible therefor (“Eligible Transfer Positions”):
- (i) To the extent permitted by law, ICE Clear Credit may (but will not be obligated to), on its own or in coordination with the receiver, trustee or other insolvency practitioner for such Defaulting Participant, transfer or arrange or facilitate the transfer of such Eligible Transfer Positions to other CDS Participants that will accept such positions. Except as required by law and without limiting the foregoing, ICE Clear Credit will have no obligation to permit any transfer of Eligible Transfer Positions if it would result in ICE Clear Credit being undermargined or undersecured with respect to any remaining ~~Eligible Transfer~~ Client-Related Positions or would raise other risk management concerns for ICE Clear Credit, in each case as determined by ICE Clear Credit in its sole discretion.
 - (ii) Such transfers of Eligible Transfer Positions may be made with respect to the entire portfolio of Eligible Transfer Positions or any relevant portion thereof (including, if applicable, on a client-by-client basis). Subject to the foregoing, ICE Clear Credit may take into consideration such other factors ICE Clear Credit determines to be relevant in making, arranging or facilitating any such transfer.
 - (iii) Following the transfer of Client-Related Positions related to a Non-Participant Party Portfolio, ICE Clear Credit ~~shall~~ may transfer any related margin ~~of~~ allocated to such Non-Participant Party Portfolio in the ~~Custodial Client Omnibus Margin Account (after deducting the applicable share of any Net Client Omnibus Margin Shortfall)~~ to the applicable such account of the transferee Participant, to serve as margin for the transferred ~~transaction~~ transactions, and Defaulting Participant agrees to such transfer and to take any necessary action to facilitate such transfer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the transferee Participant shall remain obligated to satisfy any Margin Requirement resulting from its acceptance

of the transfer of Client-Related Positions. For the avoidance of doubt, ICE Clear Credit may recalculate ~~the Net Client Omnibus~~ Margin ~~Amount~~requirements to reflect any increase in the Initial Margin requirement as a result of the transfer of less than all of the Client-Related Positions of a Defaulting Participant. Any such movements of margin shall be determined by ICE Clear Credit on the basis of information most recently provided to ICE Clear Credit by the Defaulting Participant (or any receiver, trustee, insolvency practitioner or similar party therefor). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, any such transfer of margin shall be subject to any requirements or limitations under applicable law, including Part 190 of the CFTC Regulations, and any approvals or consents that ICE Clear Credit may determine to be required or advisable under the circumstances.

- (iv) Nothing in these Rules shall require a Participant to accept transfer of Eligible Transfer Positions.
- (b) A Defaulting CDS Participant shall take no action, including but not limited to attempting to obtain a court order, that could interfere with the ability of ICE Clear Credit to take action contemplated by the Default Portability Rules, including, without limitation, the transfer or replacement of positions and the transfer of related margin or collateral.
- (c) Each CDS Participant hereby appoints ICE Clear Credit as its lawful agent and attorney-in-fact, as further security for the Obligations of the CDS Participant, to (i) take such actions on behalf of the CDS Participant in the event it becomes a Defaulting CDS Participant as ICE Clear Credit, in its discretion and in accordance with the Default Portability Rules, determines for the purposes of executing any document or instrument in order to effectuate the Default Portability Rules and/or (ii) exercise rights and remedies under any and all Open CDS Positions in such manner as ICE Clear Credit may, in its discretion and in accordance with the Default Portability Rules, determine. Each Participant hereby ratifies and confirms all acts or things ICE Clear Credit does or purports to do pursuant to this power of attorney.
- (d) Following the transfer or replacement of Eligible Transfer Positions pursuant to this Rule 20A-02, the Replacement Participant and, if applicable, the Non-Participant Party must make appropriate submissions, in accordance with the ICE Clear Credit Procedures, to Deriv/SERV or another service specified by ICE Clear Credit to reflect such transfer or replacement.

information required to be included in a Credit Event Notice and a Notice of Publicly Available Information shall be deemed to be delivery by a Notifying Party to the other party of a Credit Event Notice and Notice of Publicly Available Information under all relevant CDS Contracts only for the purposes of determining the Credit Event Backstop Date pursuant to Section 1.23 of the Credit Derivatives Definitions and as otherwise provided in these Rules; and

- (ii) a question presented to a Regional CDS Committee concerning whether or not an event constitutes a Succession Event with respect to such CDS Contract which includes a description in reasonable detail of the facts required to be included in a Succession Event Notice shall be deemed to be delivery by one party to the other party of a Succession Event Notice under all relevant CDS Contracts only for the purposes of determining the Succession Event Backstop Date pursuant to Section 2.2(i) of the Credit Derivatives Definitions and as otherwise provided in these Rules.

2101-03. Meetings of the Regional CDS Committee.

- (a) ICE Clear Credit or the Chairperson may, and at the request of any two Committee Members the Chairperson will, call a meeting of the Regional CDS Committee on no less than three hours' notice. Meetings may commence at any time between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. local time on a CDS Regional Business Day. As part of the notice to Committee Members of the meeting, ICE Clear Credit or the Chairperson, as applicable, shall include a brief description of the circumstances, including (if applicable) which category described in Rule 2101-02(a) the Regional CDS Committee is being asked to consider. Meetings may be held in person or by telephone or videoconference.
- (b) There will be no quorum for holding a meeting of a Regional CDS Committee. The quorum for holding a binding or non-binding vote will be a number of Committee Members equal to the Standard Quorum Number, unless otherwise indicated in a CDS Committee Rule. "**Standard Quorum Number**" means the greater of (i) 5 and (ii) 50 percent of the Regional CDS Participants for the relevant Regional CDS Committee (rounded down to the nearest whole number).
- (c) Each Committee Member will have a single vote on all matters before the Regional CDS Committee. In addition, each Regional CDS Participant agrees that it will cause its Committee Member (or any other person voting on such Committee Member's behalf) to, when casting a ballot in a binding vote, vote for the answer that is, in such voter's good faith belief, the proper answer to the question, taking into account any ambiguities in the application of the terms of the CDS Contract to the particular question.
- (d) The voting standards used in these CDS Committee Rules have the following meanings:

The schedule for dispute resolution may be modified either (A) by a Quorum Stage 2 Supermajority vote of the Regional CDS Committee in favor of a modification or (B) by ICE Clear Credit as it determines appropriate in light of extenuating circumstances. The Regional CDS Committee or ICE Clear Credit, as applicable, shall as soon as reasonably practicable notify the other and the Dispute Resolver of any schedule modification.

2104-04. Dispute Resolution Procedures.

- (a) The Regional CDS Participants who support a particular Presented Position shall identify one or more persons to coordinate their activities, present their arguments to the Dispute Resolver, and participate in Oral Arguments (the “**Advocates**”) and shall notify ICE Clear Credit and the Dispute Resolver of the identity and contact details of their Advocates. Advocates may, but need not, be outside counsel selected by the relevant Regional CDS Participants.
- (b) Any expenses incurred in connection with the support of a Presented Position during the Stage 2 dispute resolution process, up to a maximum of \$50,000 per Presented Position (or such other amount specified by ICE Clear Credit) (the “**Reimbursement Amount**”), will be borne on a pro rata basis by the Regional CDS Participants for the relevant CDS Region. Any expenses in excess of the Reimbursement Amount shall be borne by the Regional CDS Participant incurring such expense unless the Regional CDS Participants supporting the relevant Presented Position agree otherwise.
- (c) In addition to the Administrative Meeting scheduled under Rule 2104-03(a)(ii), the Dispute Resolver may call other Administrative Meetings, in each case on no less than three hours’ notice. Administrative Meetings may be commenced at any time between 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. local time on a CDS Regional Business Day, or at any other time agreed to by the Dispute Resolver and all Advocates. All Advocates must be given the opportunity to be present at each Administrative Meeting. Administrative Meetings may be held in person or by telephone or videoconference.
- (d) At an Administrative Meeting or an Oral Argument, the Dispute Resolver may, subject to the schedule for dispute resolution provided in Rule 2104-03(a), do any of the following:
 - (i) schedule the time and CDS Regional Business Day of an Oral Argument;
 - (ii) establish or alter the place, duration, format or means of an Oral Argument;
 - (iii) alter the page limit of the Brief;